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Dear colleagues, customers, and partners,
In 2017 Lithuania Post has been accompanied by many challenges, but there are a lot of things to be proud of by
looking back at them – the company's overall results achieved through everyone‘s efforts have shown that we are
professionals in our field that create value for the modern Lithuanian state.
I am proud and delighted that in 2017, corporate group of Lithuania Post generated EUR 1.6 million net profit and
significantly exceeded the results of 2016. Consolidated sales revenue in 2017 increased by almost 7%, mainly due
to the growth of financial, courier and postal services revenue. The latter grew due to the increased volume of
services of sending to natural persons.
Last year, the company's operating expenses, compared to 2016, grew by 4.8%. Most of them were dedicated to
raising the salaries of employees. The reform of the salary system is just the first step in the whole chain we are
planning to implement. Naturally, after the renewal of the company's management, solutions that impact 5,000
employees must be measured, properly weighed and evaluated.
We are determined to gradually improve the working conditions of Lithuania Post employees, to pay even more
attention and investments to raise the quality and satisfaction of daily work. Lithuania Post must be a place where
every employee feels that the work he or she is doing is necessary, valued and properly remunerated.
At the same time, we will make great efforts and we will reciprocate mutual dialogue so that customers willingly
devote their time and investments to our products and services. We will strive for the organization to be open,
advanced and maintain the highest standard of services provided.
We have many years of experience in the postal market, thanks to which we have created good and exceptional
initiatives in 2017. We are a strong, conscious and ambitious team, understanding what direction we are moving
toward and knowing our basic operational principles: simplicity, reliability and availability to each other, customers
and society.
By carefully reviewing and improving certain business processes, in 2018 we will strive to implement them in an
even smoother and more efficient way, and exceed expectations. I believe that ambitious and measurable plans,
effective teamwork, respect and listening will help us grow and become stronger.

Chief Executive Officer
Asta Sungailienė
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Reference Period
The financial year ending on 31 December 2017.
The consolidated financial statements of Lithuania Post, AB as of 31 December 2017 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted for application in the European
Union.
Table 1. Key data about Lithuania Post AB, 31 December 2017.
Key data about the Public Limited Company Lithuania Post
Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas (hereinafter referred to as
Lithuania Post or the Company)
J. Jasinskio g. 16, 03500 Vilnius
8 700 55 400
(8 5) 216 3204
info@post.lt
www.lietuvospastas.lt
Public limited company, private legal entity of limited civil liability
Open-ended
121215587
LT212155811
State Enterprise Centre of Registers
21 December 2016
Postal, courier, financial and other services

Name
Legal domicile
Telephone
Fax
E-mail
Website address
Legal status
Term of activity
Company code
VAT payer's code
Data processor of legal entities
Registration date
Main activities

As of 31 December 2017 the corporate group of Lithuania Post (hereinafter “LP Group”) consisted of the parent
company Lithuania Post and subsidiaries, whose 100% of shares is owned by Lithuania Post:




UAB Baltic Post provides courier and self-service parcel terminal services;
UAB Lietuvos pašto finansinės paslaugos provides printing services;
UAB LP mokėjimų sprendimai provides consultancy services.
MINISTRY OF
TRANSPORT AND
COMMUNICATIONS
100 %

LITHUANIA POST

100 %

UAB Baltic Post

100 %

100 %

UAB Lietuvos pašto
finansinės
paslaugos

Figure 1. LP Group structure, 31 December 2017.
Table 2. Key data of subsidiaries.
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UAB Lietuvos pašto
finansinės paslaugos

UAB Baltic Post
Legal organizational form
(type of company)
Registration date
Company code
Legal domicile
Telephone
E-mail
Part of shares owned by
Lithuania Post, %.

UAB LP mokėjimų
sprendimai

private limited liability
company
09 September 2010
302544039
J. Jasinskio g. 16A, Vilnius
(8 5) 205 2120
info@lpexpress.lt

private limited liability
company
04 September 2007
301178592
Rodūnios kelias 9, Vilnius
(8 5) 236 1228

private limited liability
company
12 October 2012
302889099
J. Jasinskio g. 16, Vilnius
(8 5) 274 4100

100

100

100

Key Changes in the Board
On 29 May 2017, by the order of the Minister of Transport, Irma Kirklytė was recalled from the Board of public
limited Company Lithuania Post, and Paulius Martinkus was elected as a member of the board of Lithuania Post.
On 4 August 2017, the Board of the Company recalled the Chief Executive Officer of Lithuania Post Lina Minderienė.
Inga Visockytė, a former head of the Law Department of the Lithuania Post, was appointed to head the Company
temporarily.
Kęstutis Jaržemskas, Director of Finance and Administration of Lithuania Post, resigned on August 10, 2017.
Mindaugas Kekys, Head of the Department of Economy and Finance of Lithuania Post, has been temporarily
appointed to the post.
On 23 August 2017, the Board of Lithuania Post resigned which consisted of Paulius Martinkus, Vice-Minister of
Transport, Jonas Butautis, Chief Executive Officer of Magnetic MRO AS, Algimantas Variakojis, Partner of the
Business Angel Fund, Janina Laskauskienė, Budget and State Property Management Department of the Ministry of
Transport and Communications Head of Budget Appraisal Division.
At the end of December, newly appointed members of the Board of Lithuania Post, having received the approval of
the Supervisory Authority of the Bank of Lithuania for their nominations, began their work. The new Board of
Lithuania Post consisted of five members, Nerijus Datkūnas, Chairman of the Board of UAB Investicijų ir Verslo
Garantijos, Member of the Board of AB Amber Grid, President of the Association of Financial Analysts was elected
as the chairman of the Board. The new Board of Lithuania Post was formed in accordance with the recommendations
of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD). 4 out of 5 Board members are independent
professionals in their field with many years of experience in strategic planning and management, finance,
commerce, logistics.
In addition to the chairman, the Board of Lithuania Post currently consists of head and commercial director of UAB
Vilniaus duona, Gražvydas Jukna, founder and head of the logistics group NNL LT, Danielius Merkinas, the head of
consulting company UP Consulting Group, Žaneta Kovaliova, and the Ministry of Transport and Communications of
the Republic of Lithuania Senior Advisor to the Budget and State Property Management Department Darius
Kuliešius. By order of the Minister of Transport and Communications, the new Board of Lithuania Post has been
appointed for a four-year term.
Major Events after the Financial Year End
On 5 January 2018, the Board of the Lithuania Post elected the chairman of the Board. Nerijus Datkūnas, Corporate
Governance Consultant, was appointed to the four-year term.
In January 2018, representatives of the postal sector from various European countries visited Vilnius. The
representatives of the European Social Dialogue Committee were received by Lithuania Post for two-day working
sessions. This is the first meeting of the representatives and social partners of Association of PostEurop, which unites
European posts, that took place in Lithuania.
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On 23 February 2018, Asta Sungailienė started the work as the Chief Executive Officer of Lithuania Post.
On 23 March 2018, the Director of Postal Network, Inga Dundulienė, finished her work at the Company.
On 26 March 2018, Andrius Bendikas started to work as Finance and Administration Director of Lithuania Post.
Awards
The Lithuanian Confederation of Industrialists evaluated Lithuania Post as "Successful Business 2017".
Lithuania Post has been nominated for innovation in the post operator awards organized by PostEurop, the
organisation uniting all posts in Europe. This nomination was given to the Company for its "Mobile Mailer" business
model which it implemented in 2017.
The Government of the Republic of Lithuania evaluated the social activities of Lithuania Post for "our employees’
hours donated to Lithuania". They were dedicated to children's day care centres.
The Lithuania Post team received an official message of thanks from the Ministry of Health of the Republic of
Lithuania for meaningful work in informing the public about the development of mental health. Lithuania Post has
been awarded the first place for the well-being program "Lietuvos paštas – tai aš".
Membership and International Cooperation
Since 1992, Lithuania has been one of 192 members of the Universal Postal Union (hereinafter referred to as “UPU”)
(www.upu.int), and Lithuania Post is a member of PostEurop, one of the regional unions of the UPU
(www.posteurop.org), and a member of the Baltic Postal Union. Lithuania Post takes part in the activities of the
International Postal Corporation, as well as the Nordic Postal Union and the BSS Service Quality Improvement
Committee. Lithuania Post uses the products developed by the International Post Corporation: REIMS (system of
settlements for international mail deliveries), EPG (e-parcels group), UNEX (delivery control system for postal
deliveries).
Membership of the parent company Lithuania Post in international postal organisations opens possibilities for
international cooperation for LP Group and plays an important role in networking, sharing best practices and stateof-the-art achievements. All this gives us additional knowledge that is directly applied for the improvement of
services and makes relations with customers stronger.
The parent company Lithuania Post is a member of the Lithuanian Business Confederation (ICC Lithuania), a member
of Investors’ Forum, as well as a non-associate member of the Lithuanian Confederation of Industrialists.
Authorised Capital of the Company
The authorised capital of the LP Group makes EUR 32,791,579. It consists of 113,074,410 ordinary registered shares
with the par value of EUR 0.29 each.
The shares of the LP Group are intangible. They are recorded by way of entries in the securities account which has
been managed by the Public Limited Company Šiaulių Bankas since 21 December 2015.
Shareholders
All shares of the Group are owned by the State. Ensuring the rights in the Company reserved to the State via the
possessed shares, the State is represented by the Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic of
Lithuania.
No own shares had been obtained by the LP Group before the accounting period, and no own shares were obtained
or transferred during the year 2017. No shares of other companies were obtained or transferred
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Dividend Policy
The parent company Lithuania Post pays dividends in accordance with the procedures set forth in Resolution No. 20
of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 14 January 1997 (edition of Resolution No. 359 dated 4 April
2012) governing the allocation of dividends for shares owned by the State.
Management Bodies
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Lithuania Post, the management bodies of the Company are as follows:
the General Meeting of Shareholders’, the Management Board, and the Chief Executive Officer. The Supervisory
Board is not formed in the Company. The Management Board of the Company represents the shareholders and
performs supervisory and control functions.
The decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders are equalled to the written decisions of the Ministry of
Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania.
The Management Board of the Company is a collegiate body consisting of five members elected for a term of four
years. The Management Board elects a Chair from its members. The members of the Management Board are elected
by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The Management Board elects and recalls the CEO of the Company, sets his/her salary and other terms and
conditions of employment contract, approves job description, awards incentives and imposes penalties. The CEO is
the top manager of the Company. The CEO is the sole management body which arranges daily activities of the
Company based on the authorisations granted to him/her.
Table 3. Members of Lithuania Post Management Board (data as of 31 December 2017).
Full name

Position held

Education

Beginning of the
term of office

Nerijus
Datkūnas

Corporate Governance
Consultant, Chairman of the
Board of UAB Investicijų ir
verslo garantijos, Member of
the Board of AB Amber Grid,
President of the Association
of Financial Analysts

Vilnius University, Faculty of Economics;
economist’s qualification (1994).
Master's degree studies organised by Baltic
Management Institute together with Vytautas
14/12/2017
Magnus University, IAG (Belgium), CBS
(Denmark), HEC (France), NHH (Norway);
Master’s Degree in Business Administration
(2004).

Gražvydas
Jukna

Head and Commerce
Director of UAB Vilniaus
duona

Kaunas University of Technology; Bachelor’s
degree in Management (2000);
14/12/2017
Master's Degree in Management and Business
Administration (2002).

Danielius
Merkinas

The founder and head of the
logistics group NNL LT

Lyngby Business College; Market Economy
Diploma (1998).
Deventer Business College; Bachelor's degree
in International Marketing (1999).
14/12/2017
Vilnius University International Business
School; Master's Degree in Management and
Business Administration (2001).

Žaneta
Kovaliova

Head of consultation
company UP Consulting
Group

Vilnius University; Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration and Management
(2000)
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Master of Business Administration and
Management (2002).
Lithuanian Chamber of Auditors; Lithuanian
Auditor (2006).
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA); International Public
Sector Accountant (2011).
Darius
Kuliešius

Senior Advisor to the Budget
and State Property
Management Department of
the Ministry of Transport
and Communications of the
Republic of Lithuania

Lithuanian Academy of Law; Bachelor’s degree
in Law (1999).
Mykolas Romeris University; Master's Degree
14/12/2017
in Law (2001).

Table 4. Management Team of Lithuania Post (data as of 31 December 2017).
Full name

Position held

Education
Vilnius University, Master’s Degree in Law (2007). ISM
University, Master’s Degree in Business Management
and Administration (2010).
Kaunas University of Technology; Financial and Economic
Education (2005).
ISM University; Strategic Planning Program (2012).

Inga Visockytė

Temporary Chief Executive
Officer

Mindaugas Kekys

Temporary Financial and
Administration Director

Aurimas Čiagus

Marketing and Sales Manager

Vilnius University, Faculty of Economics; Business
Administration and Management (2006).

Algirdas Šimonis

Director of Postal Operations

Vilnius Gediminas Technical University; Master's degree
in Transport Engineering (2002).

Inga Dundulienė

Director of Postal Network

Vilnius University; studies in accounting and auditing,
economist’s qualification (1993).

Aurika Pelanienė

Head of Accounting
Department, Chief
Accountant

Vilnius University; studies in economic informatics,
economist’s qualification (1990).

Other Collegial Governing Bodies
Risk Management Committee operates in AB Lithuania Post, in 2017, Mikas Jovaišas, Head of the Strategy and
Development Department of the Company was elected as its chairman.
Organisational Structure of the Company
A new organisational structure of the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas took effect on 1 October 2017. The
present structure of the Company consists of the CEO, 4 divisions (Finance and Administration, Marketing and Sales,
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Postal Operations, and Postal Network) and 13 departments, five of which, namely, Corporate Affairs, Organisation
Development, Strategy and Development, Safety and Prevention, the Legal Department) are directly subordinate
to the CEO.
In order to consolidate the Company's effective internal control and risk management system and the proper
separation of management functions, risk management and budget management functions, as well as management
and individual collegial responsibilities of the management bodies of the Company, organizational structure changes
were made by combining the Prevention Department, which was directly subordinate to the CEO, and the Security
Division in the General Affairs Department, the Finance and Administration Unit into the Security and Prevention
department, directly subordinate to the CEO of the Company. The concentration of information security, physical
security, personal data security and money laundering prevention functions in one department and the
strengthening of the competence of responsible staff is an important step towards the implementation of legal
requirements in the field of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention (MLTFP) and to ensure internal
control, risk management and receipt of funds security requirements for electronic money and payment institutions.
In 2017, a reorganization of the Department of Information Technologies, belonging to the Finance and
Administration Division, was implemented: IT Systems Planning Division was created in order to clearly isolate and
concentrate IT strategy formation, work planning and control.
LP Group does not have branches and representative offices.
Auditors
Ernst & Young Baltic, UAB, a subsidiary of the international organisation „Ernst & Young“ has performed an audit of
financial statements of the Company for the year 2017 consisting of the Statement of Financial Position as of 31
December 2017 and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Explanatory Notes for the year ended on that day.
The price provided for in the Agreement on Audit Services signed by the Company and Ernst & Young Baltic, UAB on
12 August 2016 is EUR 33,100 (thirty three thousand one hundred) excluding VAT for auditing of consolidated
financial statements 2017 of Lithuania Post and its subsidiaries individually (Lietuvos pašto finansinės paslaugos,
UAB, LP mokėjimų sprendimai, UAB and Baltic Post, UAB).
The price provided for in the Agreement on Audit Services signed by the Company and Ernst & Young Baltic, UAB on
12 August 2016 is EUR 33,100 (thirty three thousand one hundred).
The price provided for in the Agreements on Consulting Services signed by the Company and Ernst & Young Baltic,
UAB on 30 November 2016 and 4 April 2017 is EUR 47,076 without VAT.
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2. OVERVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
In 2017, LP Group earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), amounted to EUR
4,409,000, thus, compared with the year 2016, it increased by 96.0%.
Table 5. LP Group activity and financial indicators.
Performance indicators

LP Group

Company

2017

2016

2015

2017

2016

2015

144,582

174,602

173,660

142,436

172,969

172,338

18,992

17,156

16,994

18,992

17,156

16,994

3,564

4,112

3,595

2,393

2,095

2,225

5,415

5,741

5,766

5,328

5,649

5,678

4,505

4,594

4,789

4,434

4,522

4,682

Operating revenue

77,667

72,640

73,225

71,239

67,192

68,712

Sales revenue

76,940

71,909

71,931

70,467

66,424

67,386

Number of services provided (thousands of
items)
Number of UPS* (thousands of items)
Investments in tangible and intangible assets
(EUR thousand)

Number of employees
Number of employees in the beginning of the
period
Average conditional number of employees
(full-time jobs)

Financial indicators, EUR thousand

Operational profit

1,827

256

-5,685

1,792

875

-11,175

EBITDA
EBITDA, after elimination of the impairment/
reversal of non-current assets
Profit before tax

4,409

2,250

-3,922

3,819

2,431

-9,693

4,409

2,250

2,026

3,819

1,527

2,558

1,770

83

-6,021

2,119

1,035

-11,195

Net profit

1,573

19

-5,519

1,894

993

-10,688

Non-current assets

37,850

36,299

35,635

39,633

37,925

35,654

Current assets

34,209

34,916

28,891

33,015

33,984

28,160

Total assets
Equity

72,059
23,271

71,215
21,698

64,526
22,412

72,648
24,989

71,909
23,095

63,813
22,835

Return on equity (ROE)
Return on assets (ROA)
Operating profit margin

6.8
2.2
2.4

0.1
0.0
0.4

-24.6
-8.6
-7.9

7.6
2.6
2.5

4.3
1.4
1.3

-46.8
-16.7
-16.3

EBITDA margin

5.7

3.1

-5.5

5.4

3.8

-14.6

Pre-tax profit margin

2.3

0.1

-8.4

3.0

1.6

-16.6

Net profit margin

2.0

0.0

-7.7

2.7

1.5

-15.6

0.7
0.3
0.8

0.7
0.3
0.8

0.7
0.3
1.0

0.7
0.3
0.8

0.7
0.3
0.8

0.6
0.4
1.0

24.0
2.0
14.3

23.5
2.0
11.3

38.8
2.0
9.9

22.1
1.8
15.1

21.5
1.8
11.7

39.6
1.9
10.0

Profitability ratios (%)

Financial ratios
Debt ratio
Equity to assets ratio
Current liquidity ratio

Asset turnover ratio
Inventory turnover
Fixed (non-current) asset turnover
Trade receivables turnover
* Universal Postal Services
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2.1. Most Important Works of 2017
Table 6. LP Group works of 2017.
Quarter

I quarter of 2017

Event

Description

A system for strategic planning,
monitoring and risk management was
created.

Mobile Mailer project
II quarter of 2017
Complex logistics project 3PL has been
implemented.

Millionth consignment of electronic selfservice
III quarter of
2017

5 post offices have been modernised.

IV quarter of
2017

The project of optimization of
consignment issue process (OCIS) has
been implemented.

Self-service parcel terminals network has
been extended, software has been
updated.

18

The system of integrated planning, monitoring and risk
management was developed by Lithuania Post group of
companies for implementation of this system, which
established
and
defined
the
responsibilities,
recommendations and tools of the various parties
involved in the processes for the proper implementation
of the processes.
A new and up-to-date model of postal services is
introduced in rural areas, therefore residents now have
the opportunity to receive postal services comfortably at
home, 106 mobile mailers providing this service use
modern work tools.
The warehouse which equipped with a rack system and
an integrated warehouse management system will allow
to provide complex logistics services to customers.
A millionth consignment was sent through the Lithuania
Post electronic self-service. The number of users of this
system has increased 1.5 times since the beginning of the
year, and the number of consignments increased almost
twice. Services moved to the virtual space are more
flexible, more convenient, and more economical
considering time consumption.
Lithuania Post, under the new concept, modernized three
capital post offices and two post offices in the regions the Academy (Kaunas region) and Šeduva (Radviliškis
district).
Almost 200 pads have been installed in all post offices of
Vilnius, Kaunas, as well as Klaipėda, Šiauliai, Panevėžys
and Alytus Central Post offices. Following this modern
solution, K 10 lists are no longer available in the post
offices, and a signature pad can be found in each
customer service box.
17 new self-service parcel terminals and 70 additional
columns have been built to give customers even more
convenient access to postal services. Software of many
parcel terminals has also been upgraded.
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2.2. Revenue
In 2017, LP Group operating revenue amounted to EUR 77,667,000, thus, compared to the operating revenue of
2016 – EUR 72,640,000, increased by 6.9%.
In 2017, consolidated sales revenue was EUR 76,940,000, thus, compared to sales revenue of EUR 71,909,000 a
year ago, it increased by 7.0%.
Table 7. LP Group revenue.
LP Group
Service description

2017

2016

Company
Change, %

2017

2016

Change, %

Postal services
Universal
Other postal including subscription
Courier services
Financial services
Other services

48,101
24,122
23,979
6,980
12,053
9,807

43,204
20,409
22,795
6,463
11,618
10,623

11.3%
18.2%
5.2%
8.0%
3.7%
-7.7%

49,045
24,122
24,923
1,359
12,062
8,001

43,204
20,409
22,795
1,841
11,618
9,761

13.5%
18.2%
9.3%
-26.2%
3.8%
-18.0%

Sales revenue, EUR thousand:

76,940

71,909

7.0%

70,467

66,424

6.1%

LP Group receives the highest part of sales revenue from the provision of postal services. In 2017, postal services
revenue amounted to 62.5%, and a year ago - 60.1% of all sales revenue.
Revenue from postal services amounted to EUR 48,101,000, thus, compared with last year, increased by 11.3% due
to increased revenue from the provision of shipping of items services to natural persons.
Revenue for courier services in 2017 increased by 8.0% up to EUR 6,980,000. Courier services are provided by the
Lithuania Post subsidiary UAB Baltic Post. Last year, compared to 2016, 48% more consignments were sent and
received via LP EXPRESS self-service parcel terminals, the volume of shipped and delivered consignments by LP
EXPRESS couriers increased by 24%. Almost half of all consignments sent via LP EXPRESS terminals last year were
from e-shops.

13%

6%
14%

16%

2%

62%

9%

78%

Postal services

Courier services

Postal services

Courier services

Financial services

Other services

Financial services

Other services

Figure 2. LP Group income structure.

Figure 3. Structure of the services rendered by LP
Group.
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In 2017, revenue from financial services was 3.7% higher than in 2016, it amounted to EUR 12,053,000. Postal
remittance revenue increased by 17.7%, as there were 15.1% more remittance services provided. 7.5% higher
revenues from contributions and the adoption and administration of taxes were determined by an increase in fees
for the acceptance of contributions. Income from the delivery/disbursement of pensions, allowance and other
benefits decrease annually: in 2017, compared with 2016, income decreased by 2.1%.
In 2017, revenue from other services consisting of retail and commission trade, printing services, additional services,
etc., was 7.7% lower than in 2016. The decrease in revenue generated by other services was driven by lower retail
trade turnover. In addition, there was a lack of revenue from additional postal services related to correspondence
consignments from China to European countries under a cooperation agreement with the international logistics and
transport company CLEVY (in the year 2016, such consignments amounted to EUR 926,000).
In 2017, LP Group provided 144,582,000 items of services, i.e. 17.2% less than in 2016, due to significantly lower
(44.3%) unadjusted advertising volume.
Table 8. Volume of services rendered by LP Group.
LP Group
Service description

2017

2016

Postal services
Universal
Other postal including subscription
Courier services
Financial services
Other services

113,340
18,992
94,349
2,594
19,854
8,794

142,761
17,156
125,605
2,217
21,176
8,448

Sales revenue, thousand items.:

144,582

174,602

Company
Change, %

2017

2016

Change, %

-20.6%
10.7%
-24.9%
17.0%
-6.2%
4.1%

113,340
18,992
94,349
448
19,853
8,794

142,761
17,156
125,605
583
21,176
8,448

-20.6%
10.7%
-24.9%
-23.3%
-6.2%
4.1%

-17.2%

142,436

172,969

-17.7%

Last year, almost 57 million consignments were received and sent through Lithuania Post. The flow of consignments
from abroad to Lithuania grew by one fifth compared to 2016, every second consignments was an item sent from
Chinese e-shops.
For several years now, due to the very fast growing e-trade, most of the consignments to Lithuania come from China.
In 2017, almost half of the consignments came to Lithuania Post from this country – 49% of all international
consignments. Poland, Singapore, and the Netherlands are ranked after China.
In 2017, the largest number of consignments from Lithuania was sent to the countries with the largest number of
Lithuanian emigrant communities: the United States, the United Kingdom, Germany, France and Latvia.
The results of the latest poll by Lithuanian Post indicate that last year the number of Internet purchasing citizens
increased by 6 percentage points. The growing popularity of online shopping on the internet is determined by the
growing network of electronic stores in Lithuania and in Europe, as well as selection options.

2.3. Operating Expenses
In 2017, operating expenses of the LP Group amounted to EUR 75,840,000, and compared to the operating expenses
of the previous year, they increased by 4.8 %.
The major share of operating expenses, namely 55.9 % in 2017, accounted for the expenses related to the staff and
in 2017 they were by 1.9 % higher than in 2016 and amounted to EUR 42,417,000. The increase of employee-related
expenses was determined by the increase in minimal monthly wage (from 1 July 2016).
In 2017, the expenses of international delivery of postal items and payments with foreign post offices amounted to
15.4% or EUR 11,705,000 of all operating expenses, or were higher by 7.4% compared to 2016. The incrase of these
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expenses was determined by the accession of Lithuania Post to the consignment tracking agreement, which
provided the senders with high quality delivery of mailing events from foreign countries and an increase in the
volume of international consignments shipped.
In 2017, other consolidated expenses were 9.3% higher than in 2016, as more material and raw material expenses
were incurred, more depreciation and amortization expenses of non-current assets were accrued.

2.4. Performance Results
In 2017 EBITDA of the LP Group (earnings before taxes, interest, depreciation and amortisation) amounted to EUR
4,409,000, thus, by comparison to EBITDA in 2016, it increased by 96%. In 2017 the EBITDA margin of the LP Group
was 5.7% (in 2016 - 3.1%)
Over the year 2017 the LP Group earned net profit amounting to EUR 1,573,000 and in 2016 it incurred net profits
amounting to EUR 19,000.

2.5. Balance Sheet
In 2017, the assets of LP Group increased by 1.2%, and therefore amounted to EUR 72,059,000 as of 31 December
2017. As of 31 December 2017 non-current assets accounted for 52.5%, i.e. it increased by 4.3% in a year. As of 31
December 2017 current assets accounted for 47.5%, i.e. it decreased by 2.0% in a year; cash amounted to 8.1% of
total assets.
In 2017, equity of LP Group increased by 7.3%, and as of 31 December 2017 it amounted to EUR 23,271,000.
At the end of December 2017, the Group’s liabilities were 1.5% lower than a year ago due to the decrease in shortterm liabilities. Financial debts of the LP Group per annum increased by 4.2%.

2.6. Investments
In 2017, LP Group’s investments into non-current tangible and intangible assets amounted to EUR 3,564,000 while
in 2016 it amounted to EUR 4,112,000.
LP Group acquired non-current tangible assets for EUR 2,727,000. Investments were intended to renew Company’s
postal offices, to improve premises used for customer service and staff’s work places, to acquire information
technology equipment.
The new Lithuania Post customer service office has a customer flow management system and a state-of-the-art
storage and delivery facility to help ensure prompt customer service. There is also a self-service shop at the post
office, where customers can choose and purchase packages of various items from the renewed assortment and
other goods. New premises have more comfortable work space for employees.
In 2017, Lithuania Post has modernized the three post offices of the capital, new and modern Lithuanian customer
service centres were opened in the Academy (Kaunas District) and Šeduva (Radviliškis district).
Cities of Lithuania, that have received the largest flow of customer, were introduced to modern signature pads.
Nearly 200 signature pads have appeared in all post offices of Vilnius and Kaunas, as well as in Klaipėda, Šiauliai,
Panevėžys, Marijampolė and Alytus central post offices. In 2018, the new technology will be installed in all major
postal offices. Altogether, nearly 500 signature pads are being operated in Lithuania Post postal offices. The use of
these devices has accelerated the process of registered, evaluated, redeemable and economical consignments,
consignments with procedural documents and parcel delivery.
During the year, the subsidiary UAB Baltic Post has installed 26 new self-service parcel terminals, currently we have
122.
In 2017, EUR 837,000 were invested into intangible assets, while in 2016 that amounted to EUR 2,504,000.
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3. ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION
Regulation
The provision of postal services is governed by the Postal Law of the Republic of Lithuania which gives legal grounds
for postal activities, sets relations between the providers of postal services and their users, defines rights and
obligations as well as liabilities and compensation for damage.
The Postal Law obliges the provider of universal postal services to guarantee continuous rendering of the UPS in the
territory of the Republic of Lithuania to all users under equal conditions not less than 5 working days per week.
The Government of the Republic of Lithuania obliged Lithuania Post to provide the UPS in the entire territory of the
Republic of Lithuania for 7 years. Law No. XI-2379 (Official Gazette, 2012, No. 135-6867) dated 08/11/2012
stipulates that the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas shall be the provider of the universal postal services until
31 December 2019. The universal postal service means postal services meeting the requirements set out in legal
acts that must be provided in the whole territory of the Republic of Lithuania for affordable price to everyone
wishing to receive such services.
The Communications Regulatory Authority approves the maximum rates of the UPS on the basis of weight steps of
postal items. In accordance with the approved maximum allowable UPS rates, the CEO of Lithuania Post approved
the rates for universal and other postal services by of his/her orders.
Rates applicable to the universal postal services must be reasoned by the expenses of the provided UPS, however,
they must be accessible to all users of postal services, also be transparent and non-discriminatory. In the event
where the Communications Regulatory Authority fixes the maximum USP rates which are lower than the expenses
for postal services, the difference between such expenses and rates must be paid from the funds of the state budget
as provided for in the procedure established by the Government.
Despite the fact that delivery of periodicals to subscribers in rural areas is not attributed to the UPS, Lithuania Post,
designated by the Government to provide the UPS, has an obligation to deliver periodicals to subscribers in rural
areas. The UPS provider will have to justify the rates applied for these services referring to its expenses, and the
bookkeeping of these services will have to be conducted in accordance with the basic expense accounting handling
principles established by the Communications Regulatory Authority as well as in pursuance of the requirements of
the expense accounting system and other expense accounting system related requirements.
In the case where the Government, taking into account the earlier adopted criteria, sets the tariffs for the delivery
of periodicals to subscribers in rural areas, and those tariffs are lower than the costs incurred while providing these
services, the difference between the costs and the tariffs will be covered in the manner set forth by the Government
from the funds earmarked in the State budget.
Lithuania Post, being the UPS provider, maintains accounting in accordance with the basic principles of expenses
accounting and the requirements of the expenses accounting system established by the Communications Regulatory
Authority, as well as other requirements related to expenses accounting, including the requirement to carry out
audits.
The basic principles of expenses accounting and requirements for the expenses accounting system are set out in the
Universal Postal Service Provider's cost accounting rules, which were amended on 1 January 2018.On 29 November
2016, the Company received a licence of an electronic money institution. The licence grants Lithuania Post the right
to:





emit electronic money; distribute and redeem electronic money;
provide services enabling to deposit cash into payment accounts and to perform other operations related
to handling of payment accounts;
provide services enabling to withdraw cash from payment accounts and to perform other operations related
to handling of payment accounts;
perform payment operations including transfer of funds to a payment account opened by the user’s
provider of payment services, or account opened at the institution of another payment services provider:
performance of direct debit operations including single direct debit transfers, performance of payment
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operations using payment cards or similar means and (or) execution of credit transfers, including periodical
transfers;
issue and (or) admit payment means;
provide the service of money remittance.

Core services of the LP Group
All activities of the LP Group are divided into 4 groups:





consignment delivery services;
information forwarding services;
financial services;
other services and other activities (retail trade, international transit).

Figure 6 below depicts the LP groups of services and services provided by importance to the LP Group.

Figure 6. Services of LP Group

Consignment delivery services are the most important group of
services provided by LP Group
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Markets
According to the report data provided by the Communications Regulatory Authority (hereinafter referred to as the
CRA”), on 30 September 2017, as many as 68 economic entities were operating in the postal services’ market in
total; of them 50 entities carried out real activities.
Based on the CRA data, in 2017 Q3, the common postal services market increased by 14.1%, in terms of income, as
compared to 2016 Q3, i.e. from EUR 31.7 to 36.2 million.
Based on income received for consignments sent through the postal network, Lithuania Post had the largest market
share in 2017 Q3 – 95%.
The total market share of LP Group, calculated on the basis of income received for consignments, sent by postal
network and delivered personally by signatures, amounted to 38.7%: Lithuania Post occupied 34.6%, and the
subsidiary UAB Baltic Post – 4.1% of the market share.
Table 9. LP group market share in terms of income,%.
2017 Q3

2016 Q3

From sending items via postal network

97.1

98.2

From in-person delivery services (via courier)

6.6

7.4

Market share in the common market of postal services

38.7

39.2

According to the data of the Bank of Lithuania on 1 July 2017, there were 41 payment institutions and 16 electronic
money institutions that had operating licenses. Throughout 2017 1H, 2 payment institution licenses and 4 electronic
money institution licenses were granted. There is a redistribution of payment and electronic money institutions
sectors, there is a growing number of applications for an electronic money institution license, a part of payment
institutions is expanding their business models and moving to the sector of electronic money institutions. As one of
the main reasons for such a redistribution, the Bank of Lithuania points out that the license of an electronic money
institution enables the license holder to offer customers to open payment accounts (e-wallets) in which electronic
money can be accumulated and stored indefinitely, or to make various payment orders (transfers) just like it can be
done with a bank account. Lithuania Post has a license for electronic money.
Lithuania Post mediates consumer credit. In Lithuania consumer credits can be provided by credit institutions (banks
and credit unions), inter-lending platforms and other financial institutions included in the Public Consumer Creditors
List. At present, 53 consumer credit donors can provide consumer credits. The loan portfolio of these companies at
the end of 2017 amounted to EUR 427 million, there were 439,000 customers.
LP Group’s Customers and their Main Groups
The LP Group provides services both to ordinary residents and to different companies and organisations, and
cooperates with foreign postal institutions.
Customers of the parent company Lithuania Post are categorised into two large segments: customers using postal
services at the postal counter or self-service parcel terminals (mostly private customers), and business customers
having contractual relations with the Company (mostly business enterprises). In the private customer category, we
distinguish two main segments: "caregivers" and "e-senders ".
The main customer segments of the subsidiary Company Baltic Post, UAB, constitute enterprises involved in
electronic trade, also companies which sell medications, office supplies, books and IT products.
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Service Quality
To render UPS the parent company Lithuania Post must comply with the established service quality guidelines. The
main UPS quality requirement is to deliver postal correspondence items from the sender to the addressee within
the time limits set. The indicator of fulfilment of the requirement is the percentage of delivered postal parcels within
the time limits set.
Quality requirements for the USP (standards) are established in the Description of Quality Requirements for the
Universal Postal Services for Domestic Correspondence Items approved by Order No. 3-128 of the Minister for
Transport and Communication of February 2013 which are established taking into account the time of
correspondence delivery from the sender to the addressee according to the formula D + n (D - the date of dispatch
of the postal correspondence, n - the number of working days from the dispatch to the delivery). Following the
Postal Law the Communications Regulatory Authority supervises fulfilment of the quality requirements applicable
to UPS.
Table 10. Compliance with UPS quality requirements in 2017.
Description (purpose)

The target indicator value

Actual data of 2017

D + 1 = 85 %
D + 3 = 97 %

Indicators of Dispatch and Delivery of Domestic
Priority Postal Correspondence Items in Lithuania, %

88.6 proc.
99.3 proc.

In 2017, the target number of dispatches and deliveries of domestic priority postal correspondence items in
Lithuania - D + 1 = 88.6 % has been reached.
100

99

97

99

99

95
89

90
85
85

84
81

80
75
D+1, ≥ 85%

D+3, ≥ 97%
Target indicator

2015

2016

2017

Figure 7. Implementation of UPS Quality Indicators in 2015-2017
The Company conducts annual service quality surveys which are carried out by an independent quality assurance
review organisation. The methodology of verification of service quality is based on the European standards and is
used in all European countries.
Lithuania Post takes an active part in those activities of the Universal Postal Union, the Association of European
Public Postal Operators PostEurop, and the Committee for the Improvement of Service Quality which are aimed at
establishing and implementing quality standards for the provision of postal services. The Company has implemented
the European standard LST EN 14012 "Postal Services. Quality of Service. Complaints handling Principles", as well as
the centralized complaints registration system in line with the requirements of this standard.
Lithuania Post enhances its cooperation with foreign postal operators so as to ensure that the recipients will receive
better-quality delivery services.
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Employees
Table 11. The number of employees of the LP Group.
2017

2016

Change

Change, %

Number of employees in the end of the
period

5 415

5 741

-326

-6 %

Average number of full-time jobs

4 505

4 594

-89

-2 %

As of 31 December 2017, the number of employees of the LP Group has decreased from 5,741 to 5,415, and
compared to the data of the end of the last year, decreased by 326 people. More than half of employees are parttime employed as the work load in rural areas and the change of seasons cannot ensure full-time jobs.
In 2017, the average conditional number of employees of the LP Group (recalculated to full-time jobs when
employees work during the whole month) reduced by 89 employees - from 4,594 to 4,505 - compared to the data
of the last year. The biggest reduction of the number of employees was in the Postal Network Division of the parent
company Lithuania Post due to extension of activities related to delivery of postal parcels with.
Table 12. Annual wage fund of the LP Group and generalised average monthly wages according to positions held.
2017

2016

Average number
of full-time jobs

Average monthly
wage, EUR

Average
number of fulltime jobs

Average monthly
wage, EUR

582

1 154

562

1 070

3 922
4 505

480
567

4 032
4 594

458
533

Managing staff and specialists
Production staff
In total:

In 2017, wages with social contributions accounted for 54.9% of operating expenses. The wages and social insurance
required EUR 41,487,000, or increased by 4.7% compared to 2016.
Main business risks
Risk is understood as the uncertainty about the achievement of a goal, which is determined by potential events and
(or) their possible consequences. The objective has different aspects, such as: financial objectives, safety and health,
environmental impact, etc., and can be applied at different levels (strategic objectives, main activities, processes).
Taking into account the history of LP Group activities, the table below provides 5 main types of risk that could have
the greatest impact on the implementation of the strategy.

Table 13. Main business risks of LP Group.
No.

Name of risk

1.

Faster than expected growth in
labour costs

2.

Aggressive actions by
competitors in the consignment
market

Description of risk and its effects
The domestic inflationary pressures both the regulation of minimum wages
and on employee expectations. Changes in labour costs have a significant
impact on the performance of the LP Group.
The LP Group operates in a competitive market for the consignment
delivery. Rapid and effective competitor actions can significantly reduce
group’s market share and profitability of services.
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No.

Name of risk

Description of risk and its effects

The risk of not implemented
changes

LP Group projects that significantly change the activities of the LP Group.
The successful implementation of these projects depends on the support of
the outer and inner parties and, very strongly, on limited resources (IT,
human resources, finance, etc.).

4.

Risk of breach of law
(compliance)

LP Group companies operate in a regulated legal environment (UPS,
financial services). Significant changes to the legislation come into effect
between 2017-2018 (Labour Code, General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR)). There is a risk to incur financial or reputational harm due to
inadequate alignment with changing legal requirements.

5.

Risk of non-renewal of the UPS
license

On 31 December 2019, the obligation of AB Lithuania Post to provide
universal postal services (UPS) expires. In case of non-renewal of the
license, AB Lithuania Post would lose a significant part of its income.

3.
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4. OPERATIONAL STRATEGY AND PRIORITIES
The main purpose of the group of AB Lithuania Post is to become the most efficient post in the Baltic and Nordic
regions by 2021.
The LP Group of companies, in the implementation of its mission and in pursuing its vision, follows its values and
strategic directions, which form the basis for strategic goals (see Table 1).
Table 14. LP Group of companies’ strategy framework

Creating value for shareholders and society
VISION

The most efficient post in the Baltic and Nordic regions

MISSION

To save customer time by effectively delivering services

VALUES
STRATEGIC
DIRECTIONS

Simplicity
Improvements to
customer service

Accessibility
Increase to the
competitiveness of
services

Increase in
operational
efficiency

Reliability
Strengthening of
organizational
culture

I. IMPROVEMENTS TO CUSTOMER SERVICE

The goal of the
strategic direction is
to increase customer
satisfaction

Improvement of customer service will be aimed at further paying attention to the
development of remote/electronic channels. Another goal is to modernize locations
where customer service is provided and to improve our customer service itself.

II. INCREASE TO THE COMPETITIVENESS OF SERVICES

The goal of the
strategic direction is
to increase the
profitability of
services

Particular attention will be paid to reviewing the basket of Lithuanian and international
services. The goal is to reduce the number of services, make them more attractive to
customers. At the same time, the goal will be to improve the quality of services provided
by technological solutions and to exploit the synergies between group companies.

III. INCREASE TO BUSINESS EFFICIENCY

The goal of the
strategic direction is
to optimize the
processes of
operation

This is the main and priority strategic direction of the LP Group of companies.
Optimization, centralization and automation of business processes is aimed towards the
implementation of an operational efficiency program.

IV. STRENGTHENING OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE

The goal of the
strategic direction is
to increase employee
involvement

The goal is to form and maintain an organizational culture that promotes long-term
partnerships between employers and employees. A great deal of attention will be paid
to improving the remuneration and working conditions of the AB Lithuania Post network
and postal operations division. At the same time, it is planned to review and improve the
existing employee engagement and motivational programs.
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Research and Development Activities
The LP Group performs long-term strategic planning, which helps to identify the direction of the Company's
development and the investments required. From 2018 to 2022, projects will continue to be implemented that are
important for the development of LP Group's new services, automation of services processes and optimization of
works, adaptation of infrastructure for customer needs and convenience.

5. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Lithuania Post seeks to contribute in social and economic development of the country.
It is important what kind of people and environment will surround us tomorrow as the Company is an integral part
of the community. Lithuanian Post aims to be open to community’s initiatives and provide a maximum return on
social responsibility area while relying on its long standing experience and up-to-date standards.
By following International Standard ISO26000 the Company pursues its social responsibility activities and devotes
attention to all seven areas listed in the standard.
In 2017, Organisation Development, Corporate Affairs, Prevention and Security Departments, depending on their
functions, carried out daily activities and control regarding environment protection, social, staff and human rights
security, fight with corruption and bribery. At present the corporate group of Lithuania Post is preparing an
integrated corporate group Social Responsibility Policy which will be used in the future.

5.1. Environmental Protection
Lithuania Post Contributes to the Conservation of Nature by Implementing Modern Technologies
Modern, up-to-date signature pads, which had already been previously tested and evaluated by the customers,
were delivered to the post offices (more than 200) of Lithuanian cities and towns that receive the largest flows of
clients. Altogether, there are nearly 500 devices installed in the post offices, which double delivery speed rates of
postal items, and decrease paper consumption.
It is planned to save about 315 thousand sheets of paper per month by using signature pads in post offices and
making it possible for the clients to receive their invoices online. After a year the use of paper will drop by almost 4
million sheets.
Employees Urged to Participate in Environment Cleaning Campaigns
For several years now, Lithuania Post joins the "Let’s Do It" (Lit. – “Darom”) general environmental management
campaign. In 2017, 2 thousand of LP Group employees took part in this campaign. The LP Group actively encouraged
people to take part in this campaign – during the course of the campaign, many cities of the country, smaller towns
and villages were cleaned together by removing old blocks of mailboxes that were no longer used in courtyards and
sidewalks.

5.2. Employees and the Community
Personnel Training
Lithuania Post is consistently concerned with upgrading the qualification of employees. In 2017, over 30 different
training courses took place in the Company, as well as about 50 training programs were implemented with the help
of electronic training platform. In addition to training for new employees, the focus was on Mobile Postman Project,
the launch of the Customer Service Standard implementation, and preparation and testing of a new leadership
training program for executives. Particular attention has been paid to training on money laundering, terrorist
financing, corruption prevention, post handling, changes in cash management, civil protection, security threats,
processes and systematic changes.
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With the help of external training the staff knowledge, regarding the new Labour Code, Law on Public Procurement,
the new Personal Data Protection Regulations that will come into force in 2018, was strengthened. During external
conferences and seminars employees got familiar with the innovations in IT, business and economics. Team evens
that focused on strengthening team inner motivation, cooperation, communication, and improvement of
microclimate took place as well.
Table 15. Statistics of the organised trainings in 2017.
Number of programs
In-house training
Training outside the Company
Online training
In total:

Number of employees trained
30

1 305

61
49
140

371
15 644
17 320

Cooperation with Trade Unions
Lithuania Post continues successful cooperation with two trade union organisations - the Trade Union of Employees
of Lithuania Post and the Lithuanian Communication Workers Trade Union. In April 2015 a renewed Company's
Collective Agreement was signed. During regular meetings with representatives of the trade unions the Company's
management introduces all foreseen changes, strategical projects, all essential changes related to work conditions
of employees are discussed, information about psychological atmosphere in individual divisions, difficulties
experienced by workers is shared.
Key Provisions of the Collective Agreement
Collective Agreement was signed on 7 April 2015. Collective Agreement applies solely to the employees of the Public
Limited Company Lithuania Post.
After the new Labour Code came into force on 1 July 2017 the Company's management started negotiations with
trade unions regarding renewal of the Collective Agreement and Rules of procedure.
Safety of the Employees
In accordance with the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Safety and Health at Work, in 2018, the work of the
Committee on Safety and Health at Work has been updated in the post office of Lithuania. The main task of this
committee is to assist the Company in ensuring adequate safety and health at workplaces of the employees. The
Chairman of the Committee is the head of the Organization Development Department – Giedrė Tarbūnienė.
The Company provides employees with all social guarantees. The collective agreement provides measures to ensure
additional safety of the employees, and professional occupational risk assessments are performed in the Company.
Employees are provided with personnel protective equipment such as work clothes, footwear, gear from
slipperiness, gloves, gas cylinders following the rules provided in the collective agreement.
The Initiative “For Safe Lithuania” Strengthens the Sustainability of Communities
For the second year the Company is the ambassador of the national security campaign "For Safe Lithuania" (Lit. –
„Už saugią Lietuva“). In 2017 the children's day centre situated in Širvinta, which celebrated 20 year anniversary, is
visited by 30 children on daily basis. Most of them are coming from social risk families. In this children's day centre,
children prepare homework, learn household work, handicrafts, etc. The goal of the Children's Day Centre is to help
families with children who experience social problems and social exclusion. The Company allocated financial support
for the renovation of the premises to the Širvinta Children's Day Centre. The Company contributes to the activities
of this centre not only financially. Lithuanian Post employees visited the Children's Day centre presenting the
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Lithuanian Post Education Program. During Christmas more than 40 children had their dreams fulfilled by the
Company. Employees of the Company visit this centre several times a year.
On 8 December 2017, the traditional bakery charity fair was held at the headquarters of Lithuania Post. The staff of
the Lithuania Post postal office demonstrated their culinary skills. More than EUR 300 were collected during the
bakery fair. The money was used for buying a laptop for Kupiškis Children's Day Centre.
On 28 December 2017, Lithuania Post employees visited Akmenė Children's Day Centre "Akmenėliai". They fulfilled
the dreams of more than 30 children. Kids were given gifts that they had asked from Santa Claus. There was a variety
of gift requests, ranging from dolls, Lego constructors, sweets, and more. However, the most common request in
the children's letters was the desire to get winter clothes: jackets, gloves, hats, scarves. The wishes of the children's
day centre students once again reminded us of the necessity to strengthen social protection and reduce the social
exclusion in the country.
Respect for Human Rights
The Company advocates respect for human rights. During the reporting period, the Code of Ethics which applies to
all employees was issued, and is presented to clients and partners. The Corporate Code of Ethics emphasizes the
principles of honesty, responsibility, accountability, respect for the law, human rights and their rights, impartiality,
objectivity, justice and exemplary behavior. These principles must be followed by each employee of the organization
(Company) in their activities. The full Code of Ethics document can be found on the Company's website
www.lietuvospaštas.lt.

5.3. Fight with Corruption and Bribery
Development of “0 Corruption Tolerance” Policy
The Company is continuously implementing anti-corruption measures. During the reporting period, the Company's
internal legislation regulating the acceptance of gifts, granting of assistance was reviewed. In summer of 2017 the
Company's internal documents of anti-corruption policy of the Company and the Code of Ethics were prepared. The
"notification channel" was installed and the procedure for handling a received information was defined. The
company is promoting activities related to the prevention of corruption. For this reason, a separate section
"Corruption Prevention" has been created on the web site. The opportunity for interested parties to submit
proposals on corruption prevention measures is now available on the Company's website.
Corruption prevention and educational training sessions were organized mainly for employees responsible for
corruption prevention, public procurement and the supervision of economic operators.
New Procedure of Granting Support
In 2017, a strategy for the support and cooperation of the Lithuania Post was elaborated, strategic directions were
reviewed. From 2017, the main strategic directions of social responsibility include culture, sport, education, research
and social care. By approving the support and cooperation arrangements, the public has the opportunity to monitor
which projects the company contributes to, and clear instructions on how to apply are provided. All of the most
important information can be found on the Company's website www.lietuvospaštas.lt.

5.4. Other Social Responsibility Activities
Production of Post Stamps
The parent company of Lithuania Post introduces 25-27 new postal posts into the market every year. Lithuania Post,
as the provider of the UPS, is obligated by the Postal Law (Article 16 (2)(5)) to issue and withdraw postal stamps
from the circulation.
The themes of the stamps are chosen on the basis of the rules for the issue, withdrawal and accounting of the Post
Stamps, which are approved by 30 April 2013 Order of the Minister of Transport and Communications of the
Republic of Lithuania No. 3-258, Section II, and post stamp projects are chosen and printed in accordance with
Sections III and IV of the abovementioned Order.
In 2017, 25 new post stamps, postal blocks and series were introduced into the circulation.
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Lithuanian Post 100th Year Anniversary Initiative “Connecting People – Uniting the Country”
Since September 2017, the portrait of patriarch of the nation dr. Jonas Basanavičius, which is made by Jolita Vaitkutė
by gluing 10,000 post stamps, travels around Lithuania. By November 2018, this portrait will visit all the central
Lithuanian post offices.
In 2017, the Company organized over 100 creative workshops and excursions for children, pupils in all Lithuanian
post offices.
In November 2017, Lithuania Post invited all Lithuanian children to participate in the drawing up of postcards in the
competition "Connecting People – Uniting the Country" (Lit. – “Susieti žmones, suburti šalį”). Over 1000 drawings
have been received. The drawings of the winners will be released in postcard format, and in during all 2018 state
events will be distributed free of charge. Postcards are foreseen to be distributed in all major municipality and
supermarket postal offices.
Other Initiatives


In 2017, seven philatelic exhibitions were organized at the capital’s central post office. They featured
postage stamps, envelopes, postcards, photographs and other philatelic articles. Professors of Philadelphia
presented their exhibitions. Professor Liudas Mažylis, Henrikas Kebeikis, Algimantas Dugnas, Jonas
Načiūnas, graphic artist Antanas Rimantas Šakalys and Antanas Jasulaitis presented their philatelic
exhibitions.
 Several times a year, staff members of the administration traditionally become unpaid blood donors.
Regular cooperation with the National Blood Centre is carried out.
 Lithuania Post together with the World Postal Union invited all Lithuanian students to participate in the
epistolary essay contest. The contest in 2017 was held for the 46th time, more than 100 works were received
in Lithuania
 Lithuania Post contributed to the civil initiative "Thank you, Lithuania". "Thank you, Lithuania" is an
opportunity to thank Lithuania for what it is and to say loudly how important it is.
 For several years in a row, the Company joins the project "Students to the Government" organized by the
Government Office of the Republic of Lithuania. This year, students Kamilė and Edvardas, who took part in
the project, got acquainted with postal work, tested LP EXPRESS courier work and mobile postman
equipment.
 In spring of 2017, the International Project Management Association Championship took place. It is an
international project where students from the country's high education institutions are invited every year
to compete and test their strengths in project management. Lithuania Post was the main partner of this
project. Students had an opportunity to hear how the most important Lithuania postal projects are
managed. This initiative, to which Lithuania Post has contributed, is an opportunity to share not only
theoretical knowledge, but also practical advice with academic youth.
Foresight
The corporate group of Lithuania Post aims to become one of the most reliable and transparent companies of the
country.
By 2021, the Company will aim to focus on communities, employee relations, transparency and ethical activities,
and seek to relate socially responsible activities with the objectives in sustainable development.
Information on Special Obligations
In accordance with Order No 4-1100 of the Minister for Economy of 20 December 2013 “On the Determination of
Special Obligations to State-Controlled Companies and the Approval of Recommendations for the Provision of
Information”, the Company considers the provision of universal postal services and the delivery of periodicals to the
subscribers of rural areas to be its special obligations.
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In 2017 financial statements, namely, statement of the financial position and statement of comprehensive income,
the Group provides no breakdown of financial information based on the performed functions. Information on the
special obligations of the parent company Lithuania Post is provided as a separate document.
Information on the Compliance with the Provisions of Chapters IV-VII of the Description of the Guidelines for
Ensuring Transparency of Performance of the State-Controlled Companies
In conducting its activities the LP Group follows the provisions of the Transparency Policy approved by Resolution
No. 1052 of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 14 July 2010. The 2017 annual report has been drawn
up in accordance with the provisions and requirements laid down in the Guidelines for Ensuring Transparency.

Chief Executive Officer
Asta Sungailienė

34

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPERATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY LIETUVOS PAŠTAS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR WHICH ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2017
(All amounts are in EUR unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated and Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December

GROUP
Notes

COMPANY

2017

2016

2017

2016

76 940 059
726 611
77 666 670

71 908 599
731 463
72 640 062

70 466 802
772 430
71 239 232

66 424 328
767 850
67 192 178

(42 417 178)
(11 704 720)
(1 786 987)
(2 406 019)
(1 644 442)
(2 622 839)
(2 524 350)
(10 733 453)
(75 839 988)
1 826 682
578 005
( 634 817)
1 769 870
( 196 590)
1 573 280

(41 607 093)
(10 902 160)
(1 983 186)
(2 378 305)
(1 343 818)
(2 560 247)
(2 060 597)
(9 548 914)
(72 384 322)
255 740
454 841
( 627 254)
83 327
( 64 444)
18 883

(41 359 623)
(11 704 720)
(1 687 349)
(2 385 667)
(1 573 586)
(2 381 071)
(1 968 910)
(6 386 167)
(69 447 093)
1 792 139
961 635
( 634 764)
2 119 010
( 224 881)
1 894 129

(40 669 218)
(10 902 160)
(1 886 797)
(2 361 775)
(1 287 081)
(2 379 634)
(1 621 732)
(5 208 977)
(66 317 375)
874 803
783 116
( 623 275)
1 034 644
( 42 021)
992 623

Other comprehensive income (expenses) to be reclassified to profit

-

-

-

-

or loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income (expenses) not to be reclassified to profit

-

-

-

-

1 573 280

18 883

1 894 129

992 623

1 826 380

3.399.660

Sales revenue
Other operating income

4
5

Payroll related expenses
International post transportation and settlement expenses
Utilities expenses
Transport lease
Cost of consumables
Repair and maintenance of assets
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of non-current assets
Other expenses

6

Profit (loss) from operations
Financial income
Financial expenses
Profit (loss)
Income tax
Net profit (loss)

7
7
25

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

or loss in subsequent periods
Total comprehensive income (expenses)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These consolidated financial statements were approved and signed on 4 April 2018 by:
Asta Sungailienė

Andrius Bendikas

Aurika Pelanienė

Chief Executive Officer

Director of Finance and
Administration

Head of the Accounting
Department - Chief Accountant

(signature)

(signature)
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Consolidated and Separate Statements of Financial position
31 December
GROUP

COMPANY

2017

2016

2017

8
9
10
11
25

5 022 960
29 998 484
2 710 193
71 801
46 317
37 849 755

4 979 633
28 889 046
2 032 698
261 494
136 190
36 299 061

3 035 663
27 317 747
2 710 193
6 569 498
39 633 101

2 882 095
26 870 900
2 032 698
6 003 265
136 190
37 925 148

Current assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deferred expenses and accrued income

13
14
15

3 164 382
5 397 031

1 028 669
3 085 751
6 354 797

3 142 669
4 657 068

1 028 669
3 077 752
5 665 661

16

16 821 799

15 771 419

16 779 361

15 742 693

Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

17
18

2 966 008
5 860 107
34 209 327

3 832 293
4 843 066
34 915 995

2 739 997
5 695 820
33 014 915

3 786 653
4 682 231
33 983 659

72 059 082

71 215 056

72 648 016

71 908 807

19
20
20

32 791 579
861 544
(10 382 250)
23 270 873

32 791 579
861 544
2 381
(11 957 911)
21 697 593

32 791 579
861 254
(8 663 905)
24 988 928

32 791 579
861 254
2 381
(10 560 415)
23 094 799

21
23
24
25

5 782 369
299 972
33 163
162 879
6 278 383

5 062 411
342 116
11 517
5 416 044

5 782 369
297 656
33 163
162 879
6 276 067

5 062 411
339 800
11 517
5 413 728

21

Total liabilities

5 156 950
12 219 908
23 831 644
432 622
10 662
858 040
42 509 826
48 788 209

5 434 389
12 365 672
24 432 221
462 237
1 406 901
44 101 420
49 517 464

5 156 950
11 338 350
23 756 330
430 684
700 707
41 383 021
47 659 088

5 423 346
11 858 331
24 376 262
460 299
1 282 043
43 400 281
48 814 008

Total equity capital and liabilities

72 059 082

71 215 056

72 648 016

71 908 807

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Total assets
EQUITY
Share capital
Legal reserve
Other reserves
Retained earnings (deficit)
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial borrowings
Non-current employee benefits
Grants and subsidies
Deferred income tax liability
Current liabilities
Financial borrowings
Trade payables
Advances received, accrued expenses
Current portion of non-current employee benefits
Income tax
Other current liabilities

26
23
25
27

2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These consolidated financial statements were approved and signed on 4 April 2018 by:
Asta Sungailienė

Andrius Bendikas

Aurika Pelanienė

Chief Executive Officer

Director of Finance and
Administration

Head of the Accounting
Department - Chief Accountant

(signature)

(signature)
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Consolidated and Separate Statements of Cash Flow
Notes

2017

Year ended 31 December
GROUP
COMPANY
2016
2017
2016

Cash flows from (to) operating activities
Net profit (loss)
Adjustments for non-cash items:

1 573 280

Income tax

25

Depreciation and amortisation

8, 9, 10, 24

18 883

1 894 129

992 623

( 102 479)

116 615

( 74 188)

94 192

2 524 350

2 060 597

1 968 910

1 621 732

Loss (profit) from sale of property, plant and equipment

5, 6

( 57 809)

( 111 952)

( 57 809)

( 111 952)

Write-off and impairment (reversal of impairment) of property, plant and
equipment, non-current assets held for sale and intangible assets

8, 9

3 106

10 750

3 306

10 750

Impairment of non-current assets held for sale

13

-

73 184

-

73 184

14, 15

170 569

253 308

146 065

252 508

-

-

-

( 904 510)

23
27
26
16, 17
25

( 71 759)
( 545 548)
268 632
(1 532 717)
252 752
114 629
2 597 006

11 841
915 060
416 266
(2 269 996)
( 52 171)
144 221
1 586 607

( 71 759)
( 545 548)
295 568
(1 532 718)
299 069
( 269 300)
2 055 725

11 897
915 060
1 195 037
(2 269 996)
( 52 171)
( 266 192)
1 562 162

Change in allowance for trade receivables, non-current receivables and
inventories
Change in impairment of loans granted and investments in a subsidiary
Change in provision for non-current employee benefits
Change in provisions
Change in accrued expenses
Change in accrued revenue
Change in deferred income tax
Elimination of financial activity results
Changes in working capital:
Decrease (increase) in inventories

14

( 85 730)

( 889 394)

( 72 017)

( 893 259)

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables

15

794 297

668 468

845 124

881 356

1 758 089

(2 399 496)

1 908 734

(2 239 345)

( 145 765)

4 542 201

( 519 981)

4 795 149

( 848 990)
( 61 599)

2 761 332
( 211 489)

( 927 754)
( 75 874)

1 986 513
( 204 211)

4 007 307

6 058 229

3 213 957

5 888 365

(2 393 203)

(2 095 010)

Decrease (increase) in other receivables, prepayments and deferred
expenses

16, 17

Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities and advances received
Income tax paid

26, 27

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from (to) investment activities
Acquisition of non-current assets (except for investments)

8, 9

(3 563 780)

(4 111 907)

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets (except for investments)

8, 9

191 834

1 297 336

190 326

1 297 336

53 580
20 099

571 316
16 446

( 810 000)
93 580
399 853

(2 289 000)
571 316
258 314

(3 298 267)

(2 226 809)

(2 519 444)

(2 257 044)

719 959
( 266 396)
( 11 043)
( 134 520)

2 039 893
(3 225 835)
( 171 180)
( 692 298)
( 122 691)

719 959
( 266 396)
( 134 488)

2 039 893
(3 225 835)
( 692 298)
( 120 208)

308 000

(2 172 111)

319 075

(1 998 448)

Net increase in cash flows

1 017 041

1 659 309

1 013 589

1 632 873

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

4 843 066
5 860 107

3 183 757
4 843 066

4 682 231
5 695 820

3 049 358
4 682 231

-

247 770
0

0

247 770

Granting of loans
Recovery of loans
Interest received
Net cash flows from (to) investment activities
Cash flows from (to) financing activities
Loans received
Repayment of loans
Financial lease (payments)
Dividends (paid)
Interest (paid)
Net cash flows from (to) financing activities

Supplementary information on cash flows:
Non-monetary investment activity:
Disposal of non-curent assets (except for investments) on credit
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These consolidated financial statements were approved and signed on 4 April 2018 by:
Asta Sungailienė

Andrius Bendikas

Aurika Pelanienė

Chief Executive Officer

Director of Finance and
Administration

Head of the Accounting
Department - Chief Accountant

(signature)
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Consolidated and Separate Statements of Changes in Equity

GROUP

Notes

Balance as at 1 January 2016

Share capital

Legal reserve

Other reserves

Retained
earnings

Total

32 791 579

731 738

-

(11 111 422)

22 411 895

Net profit (loss)

-

-

-

18 883

18 883

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

-

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income

-

-

-

18 883

18 883

Transfer to legal reserve

-

129 806

-

( 129 806)

-

Transfer to other reserves

-

-

43 268

( 43 268)

-

Used from other reserves

-

-

( 40 887)

-

( 40 887)

Approved dividends

-

-

-

( 692 298)

( 692 298)

32 791 579

861 544

2 381

(11 957 911)

21 697 593

1 573 280

1 573 280

Balance as at 31 December 2016
Net profit

-

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 573 280

1 573 280

-

-

( 2 381)

2 381

-

32 791 579

861 544

-

(10 382 250)

23 270 873

Retained
earnings

Total

Total comprehensive income
Used from other reserves

19

Balance as at 31 December 2017

-

Dividend per share for the year 2017 was 0,00 (0,006 - in 2016) (Note 19).

COMPANY

Notes

Balance as at 1 January 2016

Share capital

Legal reserve

Other reserves

32 791 579

731 448

-

(10 687 666)

22 835 361

Net profit (loss)

-

-

-

992 623

992 623

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

-

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income

-

-

-

992 623

992 623

Transfer to legal reserve

-

129 806

-

( 129 806)

-

Transfer to other reserves

-

-

43 268

( 43 268)

-

Used from other reserves

-

-

( 40 887)

-

( 40 887)

Approved dividends
Balance as at 31 December 2016

-

-

-

( 692 298)

( 692 298)

32 791 579

861 254

2 381

(10 560 415)

23 094 799

Net profit

-

-

-

1 894 129

1 894 129

Other comprehensive income (expenses)

-

-

-

-

1 894 129

Total comprehensive income
Used from other reserves
Balance as at 31 December 2017

-

-

-

1 894 129

-

-

( 2 381)

2 381

-

32 791 579

861 254

-

(8 663 905)

24 988 928

19

Dividend per share for the year 2017 was 0,00 (0,006 - in 2016) (Note 19).

#REF!
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved and signed on 4 April 2018 by:
Asta Sungailienė

Andrius Bendikas

Aurika Pelanienė

Chief Executive Officer

Director of Finance and
Administration

Head of the Accounting
Department - Chief Accountant

(signature)

(signature)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1

General Information
Public limited liability company Lietuvos Paštas (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’) is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of
Lithuania. The address of its registered office is as follows:
J. Jasinskio g. 16,
Vilnius,
Lithuania.
The Company started its activity on 2 January 1992 and was named as State Company Lietuvos Paštas. Based on Order 3-587 ‘On the Reorganisation of
State Enterprise Lietuvos Paštas into Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Paštas’ issued on 23 December 2005, the Ministry of Transport and
Communications transformed the State Enterprise Lietuvos Paštas to Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Paštas starting from 3 January 2006. The
Group is engaged in proving universal, other postal, courier, printing, consultation, financial and similar services.
As at 31 December 2017, the share capital of the Company comprised of 113 074 410 ordinary shares with the par value of EUR 0.29 each (on 31
December 2016 - EUR 0.29) and were fully paid. The Company did not hold its own shares.
The Company has no branches.
As at 31 December 2017, Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas had these 100%-controlled subsidiaries: and Lietuvos Pašto Finansinės Paslaugos, UAB,
LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai, UAB, and Baltic Post, UAB.
Data of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017:
Baltic Post, UAB
Country
Shares controlled by the Company
Investment (accounting value in EUR)
Profit (loss) for 2017
Equity as at 31 December 2017
Activity

LP Mokėjimų Sprendimai, UAB

Lithuania
100%

Lithuania
100%

0

2 896

(210 936)

(99 990)

(6 526 059)
Courier services

Lietuvos Pašto
Finansinės Paslaugos, UAB
Lithuania
100%

(9 897)
Consultation services

2 896
(8 774)
11 525
Printing services

As at 31 December 2017, the number of the Group’s employees were 5 415 (on 31 December 2016 – 5 741).
In 2016, the Company was granted the licence of electronic money institution.
The Company's management authorised these financial statements on 4 April 2018. The shareholders of the Company have a statutory right to either
approve or not approve these financial statements and request from the management to prepare a new set of financial statements.
2

Summary of Accounting Principles
The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Group's financial statements for the year 2017 are as follows:
2.1

Basis of Financial Statements Preparation
The Group's financial statements dated 31 December 2017 were prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union (EU).
These financial statements are consolidated financial statements of the Group/Company prepared under historical cost basis.

Adoption of new and (or) amended IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations
The accounting principles of the Group did not change, except for the following new IFRS and/or amendments to them which have been applied
since 1 January 2017:
·

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify how to account for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses, in order to avoid a different application of IAS 12 Income Taxes
in practice. Specific issues, when it was applied differently, include recognition of recognizable temporary differences due to impairment, reversal of
the asset's carrying amount over its carrying amount, expected future tax profit and a comparison of consolidated estimates with separate
estimates. The amendments were not relevant to the Group/Company.
·

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments provide disclosures that allow users of financial statements to measure changes in liabilities resulting from financial operations,
including changes in cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendment specifies that one of the disclosures is the presentation of a table showing
the reconciliation of balance between the beginning and the end of the period in a financial statement for liabilities arising from financial activities,
including changes in cash flows, fair value and other changes in financial operations. The Group/Company has applied the amendments and added
additional disclosures to the financial statements (Note 21).
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Summary Accounting Principles (continued)
2.1

Basis of Financial Statements Preparation (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective
·

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The Standard is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018, although earlier application is permitted. The final version of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments covers all aspects of the draft and supersedes IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
IFRS 9 versions. The standard presents new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The management
has carried out an impact assessment on the application of the standard and believes that the application of the standard would not have a
significant effect on the Group/Company's financial results.
·

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Standard is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that (with a few exceptions)
will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer, regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard
requirements apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses from the sale of certain non-financial assets that are not attributable to
the company's ordinary activities (for example, the sale of tangible and intangible assets). Extensive disclosures will be required, including
disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligations; changes in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgments and estimates. According to the management's assessment, the adoption of the standard will have no significant effect
on the financial position and financial statements, as the Group/Company does not have long-term contracts with multi-modifications, does not
have take-or-pay contracts, no sales incentives are provided, no material contractual costs are generally incurred or upfront payments made,
contract modifications are rare and etc.
·

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (clarifications)

The Clarifications are effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018, although earlier application is permitted. the intentions of
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in preparing requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers , in particular by
changing the definition of the „separate identification“ principle in determining the entity's performance, considering and assessing whether the
entity acts as a principal or agent, as well as supplementing intellectual property and royalty accounting guidelines with the application of control
and licensing principles. Clarifications also provide additional practical examples for companies that apply IFRS 15 fully or retrospectively, or who
decide to apply a modified retrospective method. For the impact assessment of the standard see the previous paragraph.

·

IRFS 16 Leases

The Standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 specifies how to recognize, measure, present and disclose
leases to both parties, i.e. the customer (lessee) and the supplier (lessor). The new standard requires lessees to recognize most of lease transactions
in their financial statements. The new standard provides a single lessee accounting model for all leases with certain exceptions. Lessor accounting is
substantially unchanged. The management has not yet performed a comprehensive assessment of the impact of the application of the standard,
but believes that the standard will significantly increase the assets and liabilities of the Group/Company.
·
Amendments to IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, and IAS 28 – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
The Amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is
recognised when a transaction involves a business and partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if such assets are owned by a subsidiary. In December 2015 the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely
pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. These amendments have not yet been adopted by the EU. The
management has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
·

Amendments to IFRS 2: Clarifications of classification and measurement of share based payment transactions

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, although earlier application is permitted. The amendments
provide for the requirements for calculating the effect of the transfer and non-transferability clauses in the valuation of cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, with regard to share-based payment transactions with a possibility of covering for tax liabilities and the modification of terms
and conditions for share-based payments, the classification of cash-settled items is changed from cash-settled to capital-settled. These
amendments have not yet been adopted by the EU. The management has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
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Summary Accounting Principles (continued)
2.1

Basis of Financial Statements Preparation (continued)
·

Amendments to IFRS 40 – Transfers of Investment Property

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, although earlier application is permitted. The Amendments
clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into, or out of investment property. The
Amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The management has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
·

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, although earlier application is permitted. The amendments
permit a financial asset with a prepayment option where the party to the agreement is permitted to demand or demands that it itself pays or
receives reasonable compensation for a prematurely terminated contract (thus, from the perspective of the holder of the asset, may also be a
"negative compensation"), to measure at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. These amendments have not yet
been adopted by the EU. The management has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
·

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The Amendments are effective for financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2019, although earlier application is permitted. The amendment
defines whether IFRS 9, IAS 28 or both should be used in assessing the long-term interest in associates and joint ventures, in particular impairment
requirements that, in principle, form part of a "net investment" in associates or joint ventures. The amendment clarifies that, before applying IAS
28, an entity applies IFRS 9 for such long-term interests that are not subject to the equity method. The IFRS 9 entity does not take into account the
changes in the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from the application of IAS 28. These amendments have not yet been adopted by the
EU. The management has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
·

Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The Amendments are effective for financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2019, although earlier application is permitted. Amendments clarify
that companies must use updated actuarial assumptions to assess the cost of current services and net interest associated with amendment,
curtailment or settlement of the plan for the remainder of the reporting period. The amendment also explains how accounting for the amendment,
curtailment or settlement of the plan affects the requirements for the property ceiling. These amendments have not yet been adopted by the EU.
The management has not assessed the impact of application of this standard yet.
·

IFRIC INTERPRETATION 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, although earlier application is permitted. The Interpretation
clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation
covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related asset, expense or income. The Interpretation states that the date of the
transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred
income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. These amendments have not yet been adopted by the EU. The management has not assessed the impact of
applicati
The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 – 2016 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 for IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (adopted to be implemented in
the EU in 2018), and on or after 1 January 2018 for IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and for IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Earlier application is permitted for IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Earlier
application is permitted for IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Adoption of these amendments will not have impact on
Group/Company's financial position and operating results, however might have impact on disclosures in the financial statements.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities : the amendment clarifies that disclosure requirements under IFRS 12 other than aggregated
disclosure of subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates apply also to an enterprise's investment in a subsidiary, joint arrangement or associate
that is deemed to be for sale, distribution or termination of operations in accordance with IFRS 5.
IFRS 1 TFAS First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: this improvement removes the exemptions for short-term
disclosures of financial instruments, employee benefits and investment companies by applying international financial reporting standards for the
first time.
28 IAS Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: these amendments clarify that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, is available for
each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.
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Summary Accounting Principles (continued)
2.1

Basis of Financial Statements Preparation (continued)
·

IFRIC INTERPRETATION 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, although earlier application is permitted. The interpretation
is meant for the uncertainties of accounting of income tax affecting the application of IAS 12. It explains how to take into account the uncertainty of
tax treatment individually or collectively, investigations by tax authorities, an appropriate model for reflecting uncertainties and accounting for a
change in facts and circumstances. This interpretation has not yet been adopted by the EU. The management has not yet assessed the impact of the
application of this interpretation.
The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 – 2017 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, although earlier application is permitted. These annual improvements have not
yet been adopted by the EU. The management has not yet evaluated the impact of these improvements.

IFRS 3 TFAS Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joing Arrangements : The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a
business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity
obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.
IAS 12 Income Taxes : The amendments clarify that the income tax amounts of payments for financial instruments, which are classified as equity
instruments, should be recognized according to where the transactions or events that provided distributable profit were recognized.
IAS 23 Borrowing Cost: The amendments clarify clause 14 of the standard, i.e. that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
The Group/Company intends to apply the applicable standards and interpretations described above from the date of their entry into force if they
are approved for use in the European Union.
2.2

Presentation Currency
The amounts shown in these financial statements are measured and presented in the local currency of the Republic of Lithuania, namely, euro (EUR)
The functional currency of the Group/Company is euro. Transactions concluded in foreign currency are initially recorded in the functional currency
as at the date of the conclusion of a transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange as at the date of the statement of financial position.
The exchange rates of the euro to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

2.3

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group cover public limited liability company Lietuvos Pastas and its subsidiaries. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year using consistent accounting principles.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date from which their effective control is transferred to the Company and cease to be consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred out of the Group. All internal transactions, balances and unrealised gain or losses of transactions among the
companies of the Group are eliminated at consolidation. The equity and net result attributable to non-controlling interests are shown separately in
the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income.
Subsidiaries are all investees over which the Company has:
· power to control the economy in which investment is made (i.e. existing rights which give it the currently ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);
· exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
· can exercise its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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2.4

Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the method of acquisition. The cost of acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the the acquiree, if any. In each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the the acquiree either at the fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.
Should a business combination be achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the statements of comprehensive income. Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration, which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for noncontrolling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

2.5

Segment Information
The Group/Company's shares are not traded on the stock exchange, therefore IFRS 8 Operating Segments does not apply. Due to this reason the
information on segments according to IFRS 8 requirements is not presented in these financial statements.

2.6

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies. The significant areas
of estimation used in the preparation of the Group consolidated financial statements relate to non-current employee benefits (Notes 2.22 and 23),
impairment of assets (Notes 2.11, 2.23, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17), asset useful lives (Notes 2.8, 2.9, 2.10, 8, 9 and 10), deferred income
tax (Notes 2.13 and 25), recognition of accrued income (Notes 2.7 and 16) and recognition of accrued expenses (Notes 2.7 and 26), determination of
receivable compensation from the service of delivery of periodicals to the subscribers of residential areas (Note 17) and assessment whether rent
agreement meets financial lease or operating lease criteria (Notes 2.20 and 22). Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in
arriving at the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimates will be recorded in the financial statements, when determinable.
2.7

Revenue and Expenses Recognition
All revenue is recognised net of VAT and discounts directly related to the sale.
Revenue of postal services provision to the Lithuanian clients
Income is recognised on the basis of the accrual principle, i.e. it is registered when it is earned, irrespective of when the cash is received.
Revenue from rendering postal and other services is recognised after the service is rendered, when the outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably.
Revenue from sale of stamps are recognised when the cash is received (invoice is issued), since there is no reliable way to determine in which
period the stamp was actually used, i.e. the service was rendered.
When according to the service agreement services are provided over more than one reporting period, revenue is allocated proportionally to periods
in which the services are rendered.
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2.7

Revenue and Cost Recognition (continued)
Revenue/expenses of postal services provision to foreign posts
The activity of the Group/Company is based on international agreements, which regulate the issuance of accounting documents and accounting
rules for postal services provided. Based on these agreements, the Group is providing and reconciling actual data of postal service
provision/purchase with the customers/suppliers of postal services (foreign posts) after the end of the quarter usually during the period of 2-3
months. Actual data including provided/received postal correspondence of post services are provided and reconciled with the customers/suppliers
of postal services (foreign posts) after the end of the quarter usually during the period of 2-3 months. The factual calculation of receivable/payable
amount for postal correspondence are performed after half a year after the reporting period when all actual tarrifs are known. The factual service
tariffs are based on service quality surveys and are determined for individual countries when almost a year passes after the reporting date. Based
on actual volume of services provided/purchased and prevailing last known tariffs the Group/Company is making income/expenses accruals.
Revenue of the provision of courier and terminal services to the Lithuanian clients
Income is recognised on the basis of the accrual principle, i.e. it is registered when it is earned, irrespective of when the cash is received.
Revenue from the services are recognised after the service is rendered, when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably and the
parcel is delivered to the recipient or terminal.
When according to the service agreement services are provided over more than one reporting period, revenue is allocated proportionally to periods
in which the services are rendered.
Other revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Interest, rental and other income are recognized on accrual basis.
Expenses
Expenses are recognized in accordance with the principles of accumulation and comparison in the accounting period in which the related income is
earned regardless of the time of the issue. In cases where the costs incurred during the reporting period can not be directly linked to the generation
of specific incomes and will not generate any income in the coming periods, these costs are recognized as expenses in the same period as they were
incurred.
Expenses are usually measured by the amount of money paid or payable, excluding VAT. In cases where a long billing period is provided and interest
is not distinguished, expenses are estimated by discounting the amount of the settlement to the market interest rate.

2.8

Intangible assets, except for goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over 3-10 years useful lives.
Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of
intangible assets.
The Group/Company does not have any intangible assets (except for goodwill) with indefinite useful life.
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2.9

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repair and maintenance costs, are normally charged to the statement of comprehensive income in
the period the costs are incurred.
Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, plant and equipment and other directly attributable costs.
Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed and put into operation.
When property is retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the financial statements and any related
gains or losses, calculated as difference between inflows and net book value of property, plant and equipment, are included in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis by writing down asset cost to net book value over the following estimated useful lives:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Computer equipment
Communication tools
Furniture
Other equipment, devices, tools and fixtures
Other property, plant and equipment

15 - 80 years
6 - 10 years
10 years
3 - 7 years
3 - 15 years
10 years
6 - 10 years
4 - 10 years

The useful lives are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period of depreciation is consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items in property, plant and equipment.
2.10 Investment property
Investment property of the Group/Company are comprised of real estate which is held to generate rental income or value increase on the sale of
assets. Investment property in the Group/Company is the property which is leased under one or more operating lease agreements if the leased area
is significant compared to the total area. Investment property is accounted for at the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation or recognised
impairment loss. The initial cost of investment property is comprised of its purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and all directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition or location for its intended use. Expenditures, such as repair and maintenance
costs, which are incurred after the investment property has been put into operation, are usually charged to the statement of comprehensive income
in the period during which they were incurred. Depreciation of assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the period of useful life (15-80 years)
by writing off such assets to their residual value.
Investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised. Transfer to or from investment property are made if and
only if it is obvious that the usage purpose of asset has changed.

2.11 Impairment of assets
Financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each date of statement of financial position.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Group/Company will not collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The reversal of
impairment losses previously recognised is recorded when the decrease in impairment loss can be justified by an event occurring after the writedown. Such reversal is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognised to the
extent it does not exceed the amortised cost that would have been if the impairment has not been recognised.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot
be reliably measured, has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Other assets
Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses
recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is accounted for in the same caption of the statement of comprehensive
income as the impairment loss.
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2.12 Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:
-

in the principal market for the asset or liability;

-

in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group/Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models as
appropriate.
The Group/Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities the fair value of which is determined or revealed in financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
descried as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input is significant for the fair value measurement is directly and indirectly observable;
Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group/Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Valuations are performed by the management at each reporting date. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group/Company has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
In the financial statements of 31 December 2017 and 2016 the Group/Company did not have significant assets or liabilities measured at fair value on
a recurring or not recurring basis in the financial statements, except for asset held for sale (Note 13).
Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed in the financial statements comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and
other payables and borrowings. The management assessed that the fair value of the borrowings as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are
approximating their carrying value as they are subject to variable interest rates and that fair value of other mentioned financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
2.13 Income tax

Income tax charge is based on profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. Income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, except the cases when income tax related to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity.
The standard income tax rate in Lithuania is 15 %.
Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities and/or derivative financial
instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the Group/Company's company changes its activities due to which these losses incurred except
when the Group/Company's company does not continue its activities due to reasons which do not depend on the Group/Company's company itself.
The losses from disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and only be used to
reduce the taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature. Since 1 January 2014 up to 70 percent of current year taxable profit
can be covered by tax loss.
Deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to reverse based on tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the statement of financial position date.
Deferred tax asset is recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management believes it will be realised in the foreseeable
future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the deferred tax asset is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax
asset is not recognised in the financial statements.
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2.14 Assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying and fair value less cost to sell. Property, plant and equipment is
classified as held for sale if carrying value pays off by selling it, instead of keeping it in use. This requirement is met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset is fully ready for immediate sale. Once property, plant and equipment is classified as asset held for sale and no depreciation
is calculated.
If Group/Company's asset held for sale fails to meet requirements described above, the Group/Company does not classify such asset as held for sale
and evaluates it as at net book value before reclassification to asset held for sale taking into consideration any adjustments of depreciation,
amortisation or revaluation that might be accounted for if asset was not classified as held for sale or as at the recoverable value evaluated after
deciding not to sell the asset, depending which value is lower. Adjustments of carrying value of asset that is not held for sale are accounted for as
current year profit (loss).
2.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the selling expenses. Cost is determined using first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, transport, and
other costs directly attributable to the cost of inventories and non refundable tax from state authorities that the Group/Company does not receive.
Unrealisable inventory has been fully written-off.
2.16 Financial assets

According to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” the Group/Company's financial assets are classified as either financial
assets at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus (except for financial assets at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income) directly
attributable transaction costs.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Receivables
are initially recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
Allowance for doubtful receivables is evaluated when the indications leading to the impairment of accounts receivable are noticed and the carrying
amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised (written off) when they are assessed as
uncollectible.
The Group/Company does not have any available-for-sale financial assets, investments held-to-maturity or financial assets at fair value through the
statement of comprehensive income as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
2.17 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where appropriate, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
- the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;
- the Group/Company preserves the right to receive cash flows from the asset but undertakes to pay them in full without material detaly to a
third party under a "pass through" agreement;
- the Group/Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and/or (a) has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred, nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group/Company has transferred its rights to receive to cash flows from an assets but has neither transferred, nor retained the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group/Company continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower amount of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group/Company could be required to repay.
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2.17 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or its term expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another to the same lender on substantially different terms, or when the terms and conditions of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as profit or loss.
2.18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is comprised of cash in hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits in current bank accounts, and other highly
liquid investments.
2.19 Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received less the costs of transaction. They are subsequently carried at amortised cost,
and the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised in the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings (except
for the capitalised part – see below). The borrowings are classified as non-current if the completion of a refinancing agreement before the date of
the statement of financial position provides evidence that the substance of the liability at the date of the statement of financial position was longterm.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or manufacture of the qualifying asset meeting corresponding criteria are
capitalised as a part of cost price of acquisition of a respective asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised expenses when they are incurred.
Borrowing costs include interest rate and other costs incurred in relation to the borrowing of funds. By the Group/Company's choice, target loans do
not become general after the construction/acquisition of the assets of target purpose, therefore, related borrowing assets are not further
capitalised.
The Group/Company capitalises borrowing costs for all qualifying assets, however, there were no borrowing costs matching the capitalisation
criteria in 2017 and 2016.
2.20 Financial and operating lease
The determination of whether an agreement is considered a lease agreement is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date of
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Financial lease – Group/Company as a Lessee
Financial lease, which transfer to the Group/Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are reflected in the statement of comprehensive income.
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Group/Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Operating lease – Group/Company as a Lessee
Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease
payments under an operating lease are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
If the result of sale and lease back transactions is operating lease and it is evident that the transaction has been carried out at fair value, any profit
or loss is recognised immediately. If the sales price is lower than the fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately, except for the cases
when the loss is compensated by lower than market prices for lease payments in the future. Then they are deferred and amortised in proportion to
the lease payments over a period during which any assets are expected to be operated. If the sales price exceeds the fair value, a deferral is made
for the amount by which the fair value is exceeded and it is amortised over the period during which the assets are expected to be operated.
Operating lease payments are recognized as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Operating lease - the Group/Company as a Lessor
Lease where the Group/Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease.
Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.21 Grants and subsidies
Grants and subsidies (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Grants’) received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase, construction
or other acquisition of non-current assets are considered as asset-related Grants. Assets received free of charge are also allocated to this group of
Grants. The amount of a Grant related to assets in financial assets is recognised as the item of income related to this Grant within the period of
depreciation and in the statement of comprehensive income reduces the item of depreciation costs.
Grants received as compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting period, also all other grants not
attributable to the Grants related to assets are considered Grants related to income. The income-related Grants are recognised as used in parts to
the extent of the expenses incurred during the reporting period or unearned income to be compensated by that grant.
Since 2012, the Group/Company has received compensation for loss-making services of delivery of periodicals to residents of remote rural areas.
The amount of compensation is measured by the management of the Group/Company according to the Rules for Compensating for Loss-Making
Services of Delivery of Periodicals to Subscribers of Remote Rural Areas approved by Resolution No. 835 of the Government of the Republic of
Lithuania of 11 July 2012 (Edition of Resolution No. 707 of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 24 July 2013). Compensation is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the related costs are incurred and when it is possible to reliably estimate that the
amount of compensation will be received. The amount of compensation is reflected in the item of other costs in the statement of comprehensive
income.
2.22 Non-current employee benefits
In accordance with the requirements of the Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania, each employee leaving the Group/Company at the age of
retirement is entitled to a one-off payment in the amount of two monthly wages.
The current year cost of employee benefits is recognised as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income. The past service costs are
recognised as an expense in equal instalments over the average period until the benefits become vested. Any gains or losses resulting from
curtailment and/or settlement are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
The above mentioned employee benefit obligation is calculated based on actuarial assumptions, using the projected unit credit method. Obligation
is recognised in the statement of financial position and reflects the present value of these benefits on the preparation date of the statement of
financial position. Present value of the non-current obligation to employees is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using the
discount rate which reflects the interest rate of the Government bonds of the same currency and similar maturity as the employment benefits.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
2.23 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries in separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the cost of ownership method. The value of the
investment is reduced by recognizing the impairment of the investment. Such valuation is evalued and applied to each investment separately.
2.24 Provisions
Provisions are recognised where the Group/Company as the current legal or constructive liability as a consequence of past events; which will most
likely require economic resources for the fulfilment of liabilities and that amount can be reliably calculated. Costs related to the accounting of
provisions are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. In cases where the effect of time value of money is significant, provisions are
discounted before tax rate which reflects the risk typical for the liability. When discounting is applied, increase in the provisions reflecting the
period of past time is accounted for as borrowing costs.
2.25 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, except for the contingent liabilities related to business combinations. They are
described in financial statements, except for the cases, where there is probability that resources yielding economic benefit will be lost is very low.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements; however, it is described in financial statements when it is likely that income or
economic benefit will be received.
2.26 Subsequent Events
Subsequent events that provide additional information on the Group/Company’s financial situation at the balance-sheet date are reflected in
financial statements. Subsequent events which are not adjusting events are described in the notes when material.
2.26 Offsetting
When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set off, except in those cases where certain
IFRS specifically permit or require such set-off.
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Sales revenue
GROUP

COMPANY

2017

2016

2017

2016

24 122 037
19 879 946
12 053 077

20 409 181
18 591 606
11 618 457

Courier postal services

6 979 528

6 462 690

24 122 037
19 879 946
12 061 861
1 358 879

20 409 181
18 591 606
11 618 457
1 840 521

Subscription of periodical publications

4 098 736

4 203 319

4 098 736

4 203 319

Retail and commission trade

5 400 140
4 406 595

5 877 244
4 746 102

5 400 140

5 877 244

3 545 203

3 884 000

76 940 059

71 908 599

70 466 802

66 424 328

Universal postal services (UPS)
Postal services (except for UPS)
Financial services

Other services

Income from universal postal services in the Group/Company in 2017, compared to 2016, increased by 18% because the volume of sent items increased
by 26%.
Increase in universal postal services (excluding UPS), compared to 2016 data, was determined by the increase in information forwarding services. The
amount of small letters that were sent and received increased by 8%, and registered small correspondence increased by 9%.
5

Other operating income
GROUP
2017
583 980
65 181
77 450
726 611

Rent of premises
Gain from disposed asset held for sale, net
Other income

6

2016
609 023
120 513
1 927
731 463

COMPANY
2017
606 800
65 181
100 449
772 430

2016
637 914
120 513
9 423
767 850

Other expenses
GROUP
2017
Acquisition cost of goods held for resale
Taxes, other than income tax
Impairment (reversal) of investments in a subsidiary
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale
Loss on sale of non-current assets, net result
Communication expenses
Courier service expenses
Rent of premises
Advertising and representation
Cash collection and escort duty
Consulting, audit and security expenses
Bank services
Insurance services
Compensation of expenses
Other costs

3 361 216
1 607 723
7 372
1 060 190
4 021 625
2 621 398
795 945
668 977
399 507
185 250
77 174
(5 486 882)
1 413 958
10 733 453

a)

b)

c)

2016
3 687 084
1 485 888
73 184
8 561
1 021 527
3 458 264
2 461 003
793 166
697 299
347 406
158 331
71 529
(7 099 426)
2 385 098
9 548 914

COMPANY
2017
3 361 216
1 607 723
7 372
1 025 716
279 748
2 266 225
686 386
653 470
351 346
137 803
67 497
(5 486 882)
1 428 546
6 386 167

2016

3 687 084
1 483 580
( 904 510)
73 184
8 561
988 512
492 551
2 165 952
744 862
681 746
302 375
123 923
66 738
(7 099 426)
2 393 845
5 208 977

a) In 2017, Group/Company's acquisition cost of goods held for re-sale decreased due to the decreased capacity of retail sales compared to 2016.
b) Costs of Group/Company's courier services increased following the increase in revenue related to courier activities
c) Reduction of Group/Company's expenses mainly results from compensation of subscription delivery to the rural areas amounting to EUR 5 486 882
(EUR 6 341 080 in 2016) and compensation of loss resulting from the provision of universal postal services in 2016 amounting to EUR 758 346 (Notes 2.20
and 17). In 2017 CRA have not approved the compensation of loss from the universal postal services.
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Income and expenses from financial activity
GROUP

Foreign currency exchange gain
Interest income
Overdue interest income
Other income from financial activity
Total income from financial activity
Interest (expenses)
Foreign currency exchange (loss)
Other financial (expenses)
Total (expenses) from financial activity
8

COMPANY

2017

2016

2017

2016

555 528
20 099
2 107
271
578 005

434 316
16 446
2 117
1 962
454 841

555 528
403 787
2 107
213
961 635

434 316
344 273
2 565
1 962
783 116

( 134 520)
( 490 750)
(9 548)
( 634 817)

( 122 691)
( 501 888)
(2 675)
( 627 254)

( 134 488)
( 490 729)
(9 548)
( 634 764)

( 118 967)
( 501 633)
(2 675)
( 623 275)

Intangible assets

GROUP
Year ended 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 1 January 2017
Additions
Re-classification between groups
Write-offs
Amortisation
Net book value 31 December 2016

Goodwill

Prepayment

Patents and
licences

Software

Total

-

997 023
1 965 226
(1 154 444)
1 807 805

61 805
98 817
( 20 492)
140 130

1 896 504
439 885
1 154 444
( 459 135)
3 031 698

2 955 332
2 503 928
( 479 627)
4 979 633

1 294 840
(1 294 840)
-

1 807 805
1 807 805

697 248
( 557 118)
140 130

6 734 318
(3 702 620)
3 031 698

10 534 211
(5 554 578)
4 979 633

Year ended 31 December 2017
Net book value as at 1 January 2017
Additions
Re-classification between groups
Write-offs

-

1 807 805
( 871 900)
-

140 130
89 601
-

3 031 698
747 867
773 285
-

4 979 633
837 468
( 98 615)
-

Amortisation
Net book value 31 December 2017

-

935 905

(44 145)
185 586

( 651 381)
3 901 469

( 695 526)
5 022 960
5 022 960

1 294 840
(1 294 840)
-

935 905
935 905

705 033
( 519 447)
185 586

8 203 233
(4 301 764)
3 901 469

11 139 011
(6 116 051)
5 022 960

As at 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

As at 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Prepayments for intangible assets were paid on the basis of assessment of value added tax (98 615 euros), after reclassifying prepayments to intangible
assets, the value added tax was accounted as value added tax receivable.
5 022 960
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8

Intangible assets (continued)

Patents and
licences

COMPANY

Prepayment

Software

Total

Year ended 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 1 January 2016

61 805

244 011

1 606 462

1 912 278

Additions

97 797

919 947

302 380

1 320 124

-

( 644 723)

644 723

-

Re-classification between groups

-

-

-

-

Amortisation

(20 294)

-

( 330 013)

( 350 307)

Net book value 31 December 2016

139 308

519 235

2 223 552

2 882 095

Write-offs

31 December 2016
Cost

696 228

519 235

5 650 361

6 865 824

( 556 920)

-

(3 426 809)

(3 983 729)

139 308

519 235

2 223 552

2 882 095

139 308

519 235

2 223 552

2 882 095

89 601

-

618 311

707 912

Re-classification between groups

-

( 518 862)

481 518

( 37 344)

Write-offs

-

-

-

-

Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2017
Net book value as at 1 January 2017
Additions

Amortisation

(43 805)

-

( 473 195)

( 517 000)

Net book value 31 December 2017

185 104

373

2 850 186

3 035 663

As at 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

704 013

373

6 697 954

7 402 340

( 518 909)

-

(3 847 768)

(4 366 677)

185 104

373

2 850 186

3 035 663

Amortisation expenses of intangible assets are accounted under depreciation and amortisation expenses of non-current assets caption in the Group/Company’s
statement of comprehensive income.
In accordance with the joint operations agreement (Note 12) the intangible assets generated by the Group in 2017 amounted to EUR 773 285 (EUR 1 154
444 in 2016) and was reclassified from the prepayment caption to the software caption, while the intangible assets generated in 2017 by the Company in
accordance with this agreement amounted to EUR 481 518 ( EUR 644 723 in 2016) and was reclassified from the prepayment caption to the software
caption. A 5-10-year amortisation period was set for the aforementioned intangible non-current assets.
Prepayments for intangible assets were paid on the basis of assessment of value added tax (37 344 euros), after reclassifying prepayments to intangible
assets, the value added tax was accounted as value added tax receivable.
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Property, plant and equipment

GROUP

Buildings and
structures

Machinery and
equipment

Other
property,
plant and

Vehicles

Prepayments

Total

Year ended 31 December 2016
Net book value on 1 January 2016
Additions
Disposals
Write-offs
Reclassification from investment property
Reclassification between groups
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Depreciation

22 776 701
( 472 396)
301 507
165 551
( 79 152)
( 364 495)

2 376 907
726 574
( 16 246)
( 619)
( 343 865)

Net book value 31 December 2016

22 327 716

121 895
-

( 270 071)

2 588 785
737 765
( 80)
( 10 131)
( 165 551)
( 562 305)

-

29 099 311
1 607 979
( 488 722)
( 11 141)
301 507
( 79 152)
(1 540 736)

2 742 751

1 108 201

2 588 483

121 895

28 889 046

42 269 541
(12 872 162)
(7 069 663)

5 396 087
(2 653 336)
-

4 425 966
( 3 265 190)
( 52 575)

4 577 094
(1 988 611)
-

121 895
-

56 790 583
(20 779 299)
(7 122 238)

Net book value on 31 December 2016

22 327 716

2 742 751

1 108 201

2 588 483

121 895

28 889 046

Year ended on 31 December 2017
Net book value on 1 January 2017
Additions
Disposals
Write-offs
Reclassification from investment property
Reclassification between groups
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value 31 December 2017

22 327 716
26 880
( 701)
204 216
( 338 728)
22 219 383

2 742 751
416 925
( 28 354)
( 523)
570 161
( 423 761)
3 277 199

1 108 201
( 1)
( 291)
( 236 453)
871 456

2 588 483
1 672 238
( 497)
( 3 291)
( 789 282)
3 467 651

121 895
611 061
( 570 161)
162 795

28 889 046
2 727 104
( 29 553)
( 4 105)
204 216
(1 788 224)
29 998 484
29 998 484

42 699 679
(13 444 185)
(7 036 111)
22 219 383

6 297 773
(3 020 574)
3 277 199

4 171 106
( 3 267 206)
( 32 444)
871 456

6 017 255
(2 549 604)
3 467 651

732 956
( 570 161)
162 795

59 918 769
(22 851 730)
(7 068 555)
29 998 484

-

-

0

-

As at 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment

As at 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value on 31 December 2017
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

COMPANY
Year ended 31 December 2016
Net book value on 1 January 2016

Buildings and
structures

Machinery and
equipment

Other
property, plant
and equipment

Vehicles

Total

22 776 701

1 170 619

1 349 670

2 307 333

Additions

-

37 193

21 745

715 948

27 604 323
774 886

Disposals

( 472 396)

( 16 246)

-

( 80)

( 488 722)

-

( 619)

-

( 10 131)

( 10 750)

Reclassification from investment property

301 507

-

-

-

301 507

Reclassification between groups

165 551

-

-

( 165 551)

-

( 79 152)

-

-

-

( 79 152)

( 364 495)

( 124 727)

( 265 773)

( 476 197)

(1 231 192)

22 327 716

1 066 220

1 105 642

2 371 322

26 870 900

Write-offs

Reclassification to assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value 31 December 2016

As at 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value 31 December 2016

42 269 541

2 542 640

4 401 456

4 147 473

53 361 110

(12 872 162)

(1 476 420)

(3 243 239)

(1 776 151)

(19 367 972)

(7 069 663)

-

(52 575)

-

(7 122 238)

22 327 716

1 066 220

1 105 642

2 371 322

26 870 900

Year ended on 31 December 2017
22 327 716

1 066 220

1 105 642

2 371 322

26 870 900

Additions

26 880

57 998

-

1 600 413

1 685 291

Disposals

( 701)

( 26 846)

(1)

( 497)

( 28 045)

-

( 2)

( 291)

(3 013)

( 3 306)

204 216

-

-

-

204 216

Reclassification between groups

-

-

-

-

-

Reclassification to assets held for sale

-

-

-

-

-

( 338 728)

(123 741)

(233 894)

( 714 946)

(1 411 309)

22 219 383

973 629

871 456

3 253 279

27 317 747

42 699 679

2 520 188

4 146 596

5 547 075

54 913 538

Accumulated depreciation

(13 444 185)

(1 546 559)

(3 242 696)

(2 293 796)

(20 527 236)

Accumulated impairment

(7 036 111)

-

(32 444)

-

(7 068 555)

Net book value on 31 December 2017

22 219 383

973 629

871 456

3 253 279

27 317 747

Net book value on 1 January 2017

Write-offs
Reclassification from investment property

Depreciation
Net book value 31 December 2017
As at 31 December 2017
Cost
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment in 2017 amounted to EUR 1 788 224 (EUR 1 540 736 in 2016). Depreciation of the Company's
property, plant and equipment in 2017 amounted to EUR 1 441 309 (EUR 1 231 192 in 2016). Depreciation of the Group/Company's property, plant and
equipment is included within depreciation and amortisation expenses of non-current assets caption in the Group’s/Company's statement of
comprehensive income.
As at 31 December 2017, part of the buildings with a net book value of EUR 5 010 923 was pledged to Šiaulių Bankas as collateral for the loan (Note 21).
Acquisition cost of tangible assets written off over 2017 by the Group amounted to EUR 578 480 (accumulated depreciation - to EUR 574 375). Acquisition
cost of tangible assets written off over 2017 by the Company amounted to EUR 546 602 (accumulated depreciation - to EUR 543 297).
Part of the Group/Company's property, plant and equipment has been completely depreciated, but is still used in activities:

31 December
GROUP
2017

2016

COMPANY
2017

2016

Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment

158 852
782 578

157 821
793 736

158 852
782 578

157 821
793 736

Vehicles

971 925
431 556

830 181
182 066

971 925
269 351

830 181
170 740

313 180
2 658 091

316 891
2 280 695

313 180
2 495 886

316 891
2 269 369

Other equipment, devices, tools and fixtures
Other property, plant and equipment

10 Investment property
GROUP/COMPANY
Year ended 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 1 January 2017
Re-classification to property, plant and equipment
Re-classification from assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value as at 31 December 2016

Buildings
2 866 982
( 301 507)
( 490 734)
( 42 043)
2 032 698

As at 31 December 2016
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value 31 December 2016

2 937 634
( 904 936)
2 032 698

Year ended 31 December 2017
Net book value as at 1 January 2017
Re-classification to property, plant and equipment
Re-classification from assets held for sale
Depreciation
Net book value as at 31 December 2017

2 032 698
( 204 216)
924 197
( 42 486)
2 710 193

As at 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value 31 December 2017

3 559 324
( 849 131)
2 710 193

Investment property is comprised of office buildings rented out to legal entities and individuals. It also includes property which is not used in the activity,
however, an increase in value at the moment of these properties sales is expected. In 2017 expenses related to investment property consisting of
depreciation are included under depreciation and amortisation expenses of non-current assets caption in the statement of comprehensive income and
amounted to EUR 42 486 (EUR 42 043 - in 2016).
On 31 December 2017, part of investment property with a net book value of EUR 110 903 was pledged to Šiauliai Bankas as a collateral for loan (Note 21).
According the accounting data, the average price per 1 square meter of part of investment assets intended for sale amounts to EUR 135.46/m2.
Based on the management estimate there is no material difference between the fair value of investment property and its carrying value as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 and according to the fair value hierarchy described in Note 2.12 is categorised in the 3rd level of the fair value hierarchy.
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11 Non-current financial assets

COMPANY
2017
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries
Receivables for one year

-Impairment of loans and investments granted to a subsidiary
-Impairment of receivables for one year

2016

3 467 687

3 467 687

11 331 072

10 561 072

116 072

344 343

14 914 831

14 373 102

(8 274 064)

(8 274 065)

(71 268)

(95 772)

6 569 498

6 003 265

As at 31 December 2016, the Company assessed the value of the investment into the value of UAB Baltic Post by using the value-at-use method and
reversed the impairment of the investment by EUR 904 510. As at 31 December 2017, the valuation of UAB Baltic Post's investments was disclosed in Note
12.
In 2017, the Company granted a loan of EUR 810 000 to a subsidiary UAB Baltic Post, and UAB Baltic Post repaid a part of the loan of EUR 40 000 to the
Company. As at 31 December 2017, the Company has granted a loan of EUR 9 380 000 to a subsidiary UAB Baltic Post and a loan of EUR 1 951 072 to UAB
LP mokėjimų sprendimai. The annual interest rate on outstanding loans is fixed at 3.5%. There are no delay in repayments of loans.

12 Impairment of assets
An assessment of the impairment of non-current assets associated with a postal cash-generating unit
The Group/Company's management performed the impairment test of the Company's tangible and intangible assets related to the cash-generating unit
of the postal services in accordance with the prepared performance forecasts and the estimated weighted average of capital to determine the discount
rate and determined that the recoverable amount of mentioned asset as at 31 December 2017 is close to the carrying amount of the respective assets.
The value of assets related to the cash-generating unit of postal services as at 31 December 2017 was EUR 26 981 000, which comprised of: intangible
assets which amounted to EUR 1 860 000, non-current tangible assets which amounted to EUR 27 318 000, investment property which amounted to EUR 2
710 000, and adjustment due to negative working capital of EUR (4 907 000). The recoverable amount was determined using the discounted cash flow
method, measuring the present value of estimated future cash flows of 10 years, using a discount rate of 9.2% (before income tax). The Board of the
Company has approved the forecast of financial activities until 2022. In the course of the Company's test of impairment of aforementioned assets, the
average annual income growth forecast for the period from 2018-2022 is 6-8%. For the forecast of 2023-2026 2% income growth rate is applied. Residual
value is estimated at 1% growth rate. If the to discount rate vary from + 2.5% up to -1% no additional value impairment would be determined.
Impairment of investments and loans to a subsidiary UAB Baltic Post and UAB Baltic Post cash-generating unit assets
In 2017, Newsec Valuations carried out a retrospective (as at 31 December 2015) assessment of the recoverable value of UAB Baltic Post cash-generating
unit and provided an opinion on the mentioned business value on 31 December 2016. The value of the cash-generating unit of UAB Baltic Post for the
period which ended at 31 December 2016 was EUR 3 798 000. Calculating the recoverable amount the value-in-use method and 16.68% discount rate was
applied at 31 December 2016 (before income tax). As at 31 December 2017, the Group/Company's management performed a test of the recoverable
value of the cash-generating unit based on a discounted cash flow model. The value of the tested assets was determined to be EUR 4 568 000. The
management board of UAB Baltic Post has approved the 5-year financial performance forecast for 2018-2022. For the forecast of 2023-2027 5-5.5%
income growth rate is applied. In 2017, 16.68 percent discount rate was applied (before income tax).
Based on the UAB Baltic Post recoverable value test conducted by the management, as at 31 December 2017, no additional impairment was determined
for an investment and loans granted to UAB Baltic Post in the Company's separate financial statements and no impairment was determined for the cashgenerating unit of UAB Baltic Post non-current assets in the consolidated statements of the Group.
The table below illustrates the sensitivity analysis of cash-generating assets due to changes in the discount rate as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016:
31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Discount rate

Discount rate

Sensitivity level

5% increase

Influence on the value of the cash-generating unit
in thous. EUR

(1 673)

56

1% decrease
815

5% increase
(1 308)

1% decrease
529
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12 Impairment of assets (continued)
Assessment of impairment of the financial services information system platform

On 30 December 2014 (with the amendment of 22 July 2016), the Group/Company's management signed a joint venture agreement (hereinafter JVS) for
the joint development of the product. By assessing the substance of the JVS in accordance with IFRS, the results of the agreement were accounted by
Public Limited Company Lietuvos Paštas for as intangible assets amounting to EUR 1 777 000 as of 31 December 2017, which includes assets for the
provision of financial services amounting to EUR 1 175 000 (Information system platform), the Group's company UAB LP mokėjimų sprendimai accounted
for assets and prepayments for non-current intangible assets amounting to EUR 1 661 000. The Group/Company has rights to the created assets, which
consist of 5 modules related to financial activities and 2 modules related to other postal activities. The Company has provided a EUR 1 951 000 loan to
subsidiary UAB LP mokėjimų sprendimai (loan of EUR 1 798 000 is related to the JVS agreement). Management believes there are no contingent liabilities
related to the joint venture agreement and the Group/Company has met all obligations related to this agreement. An impairment test of assets created
(information system platform) in accordance with the joint venture agreement (assets tested by the Company amount to EUR 2 973 000, assets tested by
the Group amounted to EUR 2 836 000) was not updated, since as it was disclosed in Note 32 that the management of Group/Company was formed only
after the end of the financial year of 2017, therefore the Group/Company does not have a strategy approved by the management for the further
development of financial services. The new Group/Company management will reconsider the strategy for the development of financial services.

13 Non-current assets held for sale

GROUP/COMPANY
Year ended 31 December 2016
Net book value as at 1 January 2016

1 476 398

Impairment

( 73 183)

Re-classification from non-current assets

79 152

Re-classification from/to investment property

490 734

Disposals

( 944 432)

Net book value as at 31 December 2016

1 028 669

Year ended 31 December 2017
Net book value as at 1 January 2017

1 028 669

Impairment
Re-classification from/to investment property

( 924 197)

Disposals
Net book value as at 31 December 2017

( 104 472)
-

The Board of Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Paštas adopted decisions which approved the lists of real estate (buildings) to-be-sold in the period
from 2012 to 2016. In 2017, the Company suspended the sale of non-current assets that were no longer used in the Company's activities previously
approved by the Management Board, therefore the Group/Company reclassified assets worth EUR 1 030 258 (impairment of EUR 106 061) from noncurrent assets held for sale to investment property. In 2016, assets in the amount of EUR 79 900 were reclassified from non-current assets into assets
held for sale (impairment of EUR 748); meanwhile, assets in the amount of EUR 1 053 261 were reclassified from investment property to assets held for
sale (impairment of EUR 93 692). In 2016, part of assets in the amount of EUR 586 644 (impairment of EUR 117 809) which was not sold in 2016 and
which was not expected to be sold in 2017, was reclassified to investment property. The Group/Company measured the assets held for sale at a lower of
carrying value and estimated fair value less sales costs. Fair value of non-current assets held for sale was estimated on the basis of the valuation carried
out by independent asset appraisers.
Assets held for sale were comprised of buildings and structures in 2016. Impairment related to the assets held for sale is included in the statement of
comprehensive income. In the view of the management, there is no significant difference between the fair value of the assets held for sale and their
carrying amount and in accordance with the hierarchy of the fair value described in Note 2.12 it is categorised in the 3rd level of the fair value hierarchy
The Group/Company's management determines the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement. External appraisers are involved for
valuation of significant assets. The decision regarding involvement of external appraisers is taken when there are changes in the real estate market.
Selection criteria includes market knowledge, reputation, independence and compliance with professional standards. After discussions with the
Group/Company’s external appraisers, the management decides, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. The management analyses
the movements in the values of assets. For such an analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information used in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. The management, in conjunction with the Group/Company's
external appraisers, also compares the changes in the fair value of each asset with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group/Company has determined classes of the assets on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy.
For assets that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group/Company determines, whether transfers were carried out between fair value
of the levels of hierarchy (Note 2.12) by conducting a new classification at the end of each accounting period (in accordance with the data of the lowest level which is
significant for the determination of fair value as a totality).
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13 Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
According to the market comparable approach, fair value of the assets is determined looking at comparable transactions. Market approach is based on
the principle of transposing/reshuffling according to which a potential purchaser will not pay more for the asset than a comparable substitute asset would
2
cost. The comparable unit used by the Group/Company is price for square meter (m ). According the accounting data, the average price of the
Group/Company’s assets held for sale in 2016 was EUR 163 /m2.

14 Inventories
31 December
GROUP
2017
Consumables and raw materials
Philately production
Goods for resale

Less: impairment

COMPANY
2017

2016

2016

67 218
95 829

40 278
90 447

45 505
95 829

32 279
90 447

3 039 213

2 985 805

3 039 213

2 985 805

3 202 261

3 116 530

3 180 548

3 108 531

(37 879)

(30 779)

(37 879)

(30 779)

3 164 382

3 085 751

3 142 669

3 077 752

The acquisition cost of the Group/Company’s inventories accounted for at net realisable value amounted to EUR 37 879 as at 31 December 2017 (EUR 30
779 – on 31 December 2016). The change in the allowance for inventories for the year 2017 and 2016 was included into other expenses caption in the
Group/Company’s statements of comprehensive income.
Amount of written off and sold goods of the Group/Company accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income amounted to EUR 4 208 831 in
2017 (EUR 5 030 902 - in 2016).
In 2017, the Group/Company had inventories stored on the basis of consignment for the amount of EUR 508 675 ( EUR 312 345 Eur - in 2016) and these
inventories were not accounted for in the statement of financial position.

15 Trade receivables
31 December
GROUP
2017
Trade receivables, gross
Allowance for doubtful receivables

6 163 159
( 766 128)
5 397 031

COMPANY
2017

2016
7 983 085
(1 628 288)
6 354 797

5 403 973
( 746 905)
4 657 068

2016

7 273 384
(1 607 723)
5 665 661

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally collectible on 30 days terms.
Trade receivables and other receivables are written off when top management is 100% sure that the amount will not be recovered.

GROUP
1 628 288
(1 024 287)

Balance as at 31 December 2016
Written off bad debts for the year

COMPANY
1 607 723

Allowance charged for the year

162 127

(1024 287)
163 469

Balance as at 31 December 2017

766 128

746 905

Change in generally measured allowance in terms of trade receivables (except for fully allowed) in 2017 and 2016 is included in the Group/Company's statement of
comprehensive income under the other expenses caption.
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15 Trade receivables (continued)

Analysis of ageing of trade receivables on 31 December of 2017 and 2016 (less the allowance):

GROUP

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

Trade receivables neither past
due nor impaired
less than 30 days
5 874 863
4 867 449

31 December 2016
31 December 2017

COMPANY

Trade receivables neither past
due nor impaired

31 December 2016
31 December 2017

30-60 days

60-90 days

90 – 180 days

Total

62 556
44 206

24 389
35 931

84 852
76 234

6 354 797
5 397 031

308 137
373 211

Trade receivables past due but not impaired
less than 30 days

5 201 120
4 202 096

30-60 days

60-90 days

90 – 180 days

Total

61 047
44 206

22 885
34 473

81 928
73 655

5 665 661
4 657 068

298 681
302 638

Quality of not past due and not impaired financial assets
There are no indications that receivables past due but not impaired will not be covered for the date of these financial statements.
16 Prepayments, deferred expenses and accrued income revenue of future accounting periods

31 December
GROUP

Accrued income for international settlements
Deferred expenses
Prepayments for services
Prepaid income tax

(a)
(b)

COMPANY

2017

2016

2017

2016

13 014 913
148 706
3 453 239
204 941
16 821 799

11 482 195
135 743
4 098 601
54 880
15 771 419

13 014 913
131 905
3 427 602
204 941
16 779 361

11 482 195
115 119
4 090 499
54 880
15 742 693

a) Under the accrued income for international settlements caption the Group/Company accounts services provided to foreign post-offices (designated
operators) which are finally reconciled and invoices are issued subsequently after the date of the statements of financial position. China Post has not yet
approved the 2015 letter correspondence invoice of EUR 2 million due to China Post IT system issues (advance payment of EUR 1 million was received for
this invoice). The Group/Company's management does not see the risk of disapproval or non-payment of the invoice and is currently reconciling the
amount.
b) On the basis of the Universal Postal Union Convention and in accordance with the provisions of the regulations, foreign pots-offices (designated
operators) suppliers may require prepayments that are related to international postal services. As of 31 December 2017, the major part of prepayments EUR 2 873 735 (EUR 3 654 600 at 31 December 2016) consist of payments related to international postal services.
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17 Other receivables
31 December
GROUP
2017
Receivable of compensation for the periodical
publication's delivery services to subscribers in
rural areas
Prepayments to budget
Other receivables

(a)

2016

COMPANY
2017

2016

2 711 402

3 704 425

2 711 402

3 704 424

219 333
35 273
2 966 008

129 000
(1 132)
3 832 293

28 595
2 739 997

82 229
3 786 653

a) In 2017, the Group/Company incurred loss of EUR 5 486 882 while providing delivery services of periodicals to subscribers in rural areas. According to
the procedure of compensation of losses from the services of delivery of periodicals to subscribers in rural areas established by the Government, in 2017
the amount of EUR 3 704 425 for 2H 2016 and EUR 2 775 480 for 1H 2017 were compensated to the Group/Company (in 2016, EUR 5 101 971 were
compensated).

18 Cash and cash equivalents
31 December
GROUP
2017
Cash at bank
Cash on hand
Cash in transit

2016

COMPANY
2017

2016

1 797 415

908 078

1 742 182

806 672

1 608 149
2 454 543
5 860 107

1 839 201
2 095 788
4 843 066

1 608 150
2 345 488
5 695 820

1 839 201
2 036 359
4 682 231

19 Share capital
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, 113 074 410 ordinary shares of the Group with the par value of 0.29 euro (0.29 eur - on 31 December 2016) were
owned by the Republic of Lithuania. All shares were fully paid as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. According to the Republic of Lithuania Law on
Enterprises, a company's total equity cannot be less than ½ of its share capital specified in the Articles of Association of the company. As of 31 December
2017 and 2016, the Group was in compliance with this requirement.

Calculation of weighted average, 2016

Number of shares Nominal value

In circulation /
365 (in days)

Weighted
average

Number of shares as at 31 December 2015

113 074 410

0,29

365/365

113 074 410

Number of shares as at 31 December 2016

113 074 410

0,29

365/365

113 074 410

Calculation of weighted average, 2017

Number of shares Nominal value

In circulation /
365 (in days)

Weighted
average

Number of shares as at 31 December 2016

113 074 410

0,29

365/365

113 074 410

Number of shares as at 31 December 2017

113 074 410

0,29

365/365

113 074 410

2017
Dividends payable to shareholders
Average weighted number of released shares (pcs.)
Profit per share (EUR)

Profit per share (EUR)
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20 Reserves
Legal reserve
This reserve is compulsory under the requirements of the Law on Enterprises of the Republic of Lithuania. Annual transfers of not less than 5% of net
profit calculated for statutory reporting purposes are required until the reserve reaches 10% of the share capital. In 2016, when distributing retained
earnings of 2015 the Group/Company transferred the amount of EUR 129 806 into the legal reserve.
In 2016, the Group/Company was profitable, however, when distributing the retained earnings in 2017 for the year 2016, 5% of the result was not
transferred to the legal reserve due to retained deficit. Since the Company has retained deficit, the Company's general meeting of shareholders has to
make a decision as provided for in the Republic of Lithuania Law on Enterprises to cover these losses by transferring amounts to the retained earnings
(deficit) in the following order:
1) from reserves not used during reference financial years;
2) from legal reserve.
Other reserves
In 2016, when distributing the retained earnings for 2015, the Company transferred EUR 43 268 to other reserves (Eur 19 915 - part of profit was allocated
for Board members ' benefits and employees' premiums; EUR 23 353 - part of profit was allocated to social and cultural needs). Over the year 2016, EUR
18 638 were used from the reserve intended for Board members' benefits and employee premiums, and EUR 22 249 - from the reserve intended for
social and cultural needs.

21 Financial borrowings
31 December
GROUP
2017
Non-current borrowings
Loans from banks
Financial lease obligations

Current borrowings
Loans from banks – current portion of non-current borrowings
Financial lease obligations
Total financial borrowings

COMPANY
2017

2016

2016

5 782 369
5 782 369
Finansinės

5 062 411
5 062 411

5 782 369
5 782 369
5782369

5 062 411
5 062 411

5 156 950
5 156 950
10 939 319

5 423 346
11 043
5 434 389
10 496 800

5 156 950
5 156 950
10 939 319

5 423 346
5 423 346
10 485 757

Terms of repayment of long-term financial borrowings (except for leasing liabilities):
31 December
GROUP
2017
Within one year
In the period from one to five years
After five years

5 782 369
5 782 369

2016
5 062 410
5 062 410

COMPANY
2017
5 782 369
5 782 369

2016
5 062 410
5 062 410

Interest rates of outstanding loans as at 31 December 2017 were as follows: 3 month EURIBOR +2.8%, 3 month EURIBOR + 0.72%. As at 31 December
2016, interest rates of outstanding loans were as follows: 3 month EURIBOR +2.8%, 3 month EURIBOR + 0.72%.
Part of tangible non-current assets and investment property of the Group/Company is pledged to Šiauliai Bankas, AB as collateral for the loan (Notes 9
and 10).
Due to breach of loan covenant of loan agreement with Danske Bank, long-terms liabilities, namely, EUR 5 426 346 were reclassified to short-term
liabilities in 2016 financial statements. On 7 April 2017 the Group/Company has signed an amendment to the special part of financing services (crediting)
contract with Danske Bank, which was signed on 29 October 2015, according to which the Group/Company met the established financial indicators.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of unused credit lines and overdrafts amounted to EUR 6 853 081 (on 31 December 2016 - to EUR 10 306 644).
All loans are denominated in euros, therefore, there is no foreign currency exchange risk.
All Group/Company's financial borrowings are denominated in euros, the rate of which is fixed in litas, therefore, there is not foreign currency exchange
risk.
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21 Financial borrowings (continuation)

Financial lease terms do not impose restrictions on Group/Company activities related to dividends, additional debt or additional long-term lease.
Changes in financial borrowings

As at 31 December
2016
Obligations to credit institutions
Interest for credit institutions
Financial lease obligations
Total

10 485 757
1 241
11 043
10 498 041

GROUP
Changes in cash
flow from
Changes in fair
financial
value
activities
453 563
( 134 488)
( 11 043)
308 032
-

COMPANY
Changes in cash
As at 31 December
flow from
Changes in fair
2016
financial
value
activities
Obligations to credit institutions
Interest for credit institutions
Financial lease obligations
Total

As at 31
December
2017

Calculated
interest
133 247
133 247

10 939 320
10 939 320

As at 31
December
2017

Calculated
interest

10 485 757

453 563

-

-

10 939 320

1 241

( 134 520)

-

133 279

-

10 486 998

319 043

-

133 279

10 939 320

22 Operating lease and loan-for-use
The Group had 318 lease agreements for leasing out 17 928 m2 of premises and structures as at 31 December 2017. There are 60 termless agreements
and 2 fixed-term agreements with the term expiring in 2017, however, these agreements are intended to be prolonged. The average monthly rent income
is EUR 48 525. In 2017, the Group earned EUR 583 980 rent income and EUR 609 023 - in 2016.
The Company had 321 lease agreements for leasing out 18 899 m2 of premises and structures as at 31 December 2017. There are 61 termless
agreements and 2 fixed-term agreements with the term expiring in 2017, however, these agreements are intended to be prolonged. The average monthly
rent income is EUR 50 427. In 2017, the Company earned EUR 606 800 rent income and EUR 637 914 - in 2016.
Minimal future lease income of irrevocable lease agreements are as follows:
31 December
GROUP
2017
444 941
570 144
61 697

Within one year
In the period from one year to five
After five years

1 076 783

2016
477 294
573 142
57 951
1 108 387

COMPANY
2017

2016

581 728
940 725
693 288

570 888
944 765
874 398

2 215 741

2 390 051

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had concluded 260 lease agreements for leasing 28 530 square meters of premises, vehicles, card readers and
terminals. Of these agreements, as many as 38 are termless, and the rest are fixed-term with the possibility to extend them on bilateral agreement of
both parties. The average monthly rent expenses are EUR 218 450. In 2017, the Group incurred rent expenses, and terminal lease in the amount of EUR 2
621 398, and in 2016 - EUR 2 461 003.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had concluded 219 lease agreements for leasing 23 985 square meters of premises. Of these agreements, as many
as 38 are termless, and the rest are fixed-term with the possibility to extend them on bilateral agreement of both parties. The average monthly rent
expenses are EUR 188 852. In 2017, the Company incurred rent expenses in the amount of EUR 2 266 225, and in 2016 - EUR 2 165 952.
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22 Operating lease and loan-for-use (continued)

Minimal future payments according to the signed operating lease agreements are as follows:
31 December
GROUP
2017
2 486 421

Within one year
In the period from one year to five
years
After five years

4 791 577
6 059 685
13 337 683

2016
1 762 950
4 085 982
6 398 164
12 247 096

COMPANY
2017

2016

2 202 753

1 562 815

4 351 523

3 955 545

6 052 208
12 606 484

6 753 399
12 271 759

The Group leases out land from state, the term of the lease varies from 5 to 99 years. Annual lease payment in 2016 amounted to EUR 58 000.
The Group has entered into 3 loan-for-use agreements with the loan recipients. Based on these agreements the Group rents 117 m2 of premises. The net
book value of the assets rented as loan-for-use amounted to EUR 28 442 as at 31 December 2017. Loan-for-use agreements are fixed-term (expire in the
period from 2018 to 2020).
The Group has signed 40 loan-for-use agreements with the lenders. Based on these agreements, the Company leases 1 584 m2 of premises. Term-less
agreements allow for lease of 817 m2 of premises, other agreements are fixed-term (expire in the period from 2018-2030).
Terms and conditions of operating lease agreements provide for no limitation on the performance of the Group/Company related to dividends, additional
debts (arrears) or additional long-term lease.

23 Non-current employee benefits
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 long-term employee benefits of the Group/Company were comprised of long-term liabilities to employees related to
one-time benefits to employees leaving the Group/Company at the age of retirement. Related expenses are included into other expenses caption in the
statement of comprehensive income of the Group/Company.
Change in the liability to pay pension benefits to employees is presented below:
GROUP

COMPANY

Balance as at 31 December 2016

804 353

800 099

Change

(71 759)

(71 759)

Balance as at 31 December 2017

732 594

728 340

As at 31
December 2017
1,43-1,73
24,39-63
3-11

As at 31
December
2016
0,79-1,46
22,49-40
3

The main assumptions applied while evaluating pension benefits to employees are as follows:

Discount rate
Employee turnover rate
Annual salary increase
Sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions as at 31 December 2017 is provided below:

Assumptions

Anticipated annual salary
increase

Discount rate

Sensitivity level

Increase by
0.5%

Impact on non-current
employee benefit liabilities increase/decrease

4 890

Decrease by 0.5% Increase by 1 %

(5 090)

(10 123)

Turnover of employees

Decrease by
1%

Increase by 1
%

Decrease by
1%

9 541

12 863

(13 944)

The table reveals the sensitivity analysis of the non-current employee benefit liability in terms of the specified changes at the end of the accounting
period, where upon the change of one variable, all other variables are considered constant.
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24 Grants and subsidies
GROUP/COMPANY
Gross value as at 31 December 2016

15 184

Received grant

4 568

Receivable grant

18 964

Written-off grant

-

Gross value as at 31 December 2017

38 716

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 December 2016

( 3 667)

Amortisation for the period

(1 886)

Amortisation assets as written-off

-

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 December 2017

( 5 553)

Net book value as at 31 December 2016

11 517

Net book value as at 31 December 2017

33 163

25 Income tax

33163
31 December
GROUP
2017

COMPANY
2017

2016

2016

Components of the income tax income (expenses):
(30 795)
86 956
( 252 751)
( 196 590)

Current income tax (expenses) for the reporting year
Adjustments in income tax of the previous year
Deferred income tax (expenses)
Income tax (expenses) accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income

(133 118)
16 503
52 171
( 64 444)

(20 133)
94 321
( 299 069)
( 224 881)

(110 695)
16 503
52 171
( 42 021)

The amount of income tax gain (expenses) reported in the statement of comprehensive income attributable to operating result of the year can be
reconciled to the amount of income tax expenses that would result from applying the statutory income tax rate of 15% in 2017 and 2016 to pre-tax
income from continuing operations as follows:
31 December
GROUP
2017

Income tax accounted for at the statutory rate of 15%
Permanent differences
Prior year income tax corrections
Emergence (removal) of temporary differences
Use of accrued tax losses from which deferred income tax assets
have not been recognized
Utilization of investment project subsidy
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets due to the tax losses and
other temporary differences
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred income tax on
accumulated tax losses
Income tax (expenses) gain
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2016

COMPANY
2017

2016

(265 481)

(12 499)

(317 852)

(155 197)

39 192
(21 675)
( 81 832)

(42 810)
16 503
( 6 899)

89 610
(12 325)
( 81 832)

96 931
16 503
( 258)

9 263

-

-

-

108 631

-

106 646

-

(31 005)

(18 739)

(9 128)

-

46 317

-

-

-

( 196 590)

( 64 444)

( 224 881)

( 42 021)
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25 Income tax (continued)
31 December
GROUP
2017

COMPANY
2017

2016

2016

Components of deferred income tax asset:
Tax loss
Accrued expenses
Impairment
Deferred income tax asset before valuation
allowance
Less: valuation allowance
Deferred income tax asset, net
Components of deferred income tax liability:
Property, plant and equipment (tangible non-current assets)
Deferred income tax liability
Deferred income tax, net

878 948
578 604
117 718

970 382
628 893
98 221

832 631
578 604
117 718

970 382
628 893
98 221

1 575 270
1 575 270

1 697 496
1 697 496

1 528 953
1 528 953

1 697 496
1 697 496

(1 691 832)
(1 691 832)
( 116 562)

(1 561 306)
(1 561 306)
136 190

(1 691 832)
(1 691 832)
( 162 879)

(1 561 306)
(1 561 306)
136 190

Deferred income taxes are presented in financial statements as: deferred income tax assets of EUR 46 317 (from the statement of financial position) and
deferred tax liability of EUR 162 879 (from the statement of financial position).
Deferred income tax asset and liability were accounted for using 15% rate as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Deferred income tax asset in the Group/Company’s financial statements is set off against deferred income tax liability as they both are related to the
same tax administration institution.

As at 31 December 2017, by estimation of the management of the Group/Company, the deferred income tax assets in the amount of EUR 1 065 012
related to the accumulated tax losses in the amount of EUR 7 100 078 were not recognised (compared to EUR 1 134 435 of deferred income tax asset
from EUR 7 562 902 of accumulated tax loss on 31 December 2016), because based on the assessment of future cash flow forecasts of the subsidiary
Baltic Post, UAB the management of the Group/Company’s company does not expect to earn any major taxable profit in the coming year.
26 Advances received, accrued expenses
31 December
GROUP
2017
Advances received
Accrued expenses of international settlements
Vacation reserve
Accrued variable part salary expenses
Other

8 960 227
11 566 872
2 805 213
210 562
288 770
23 831 644

(a)
(b)

2016
9 829 436
11 354 154
2 510 804
434 290
303 537
24 432 221

COMPANY
2017
8 946 557
11 566 872
2 759 508
210 562
272 830
23 756 330

2016

9 815 690
11 354 154
2 477 460
434 290
294 668
24 376 262

a) Received advance payments are mostly comprised of advance payments for subscription and advance payments received from foreign postal offices
(designated operators).
b) Accrued expenses of international settlements are composed of services received from foreign post-offices (designated operators) which will be
eventually agreed and invoices will be received the following year after the date of the financial statements.
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27 Other payables
31 December
GROUP
2017
Employment related liabilities
Restructuring provision
Taxes (except for profit tax)
Other
Other payables

108 761
369 512
364 392
15 375
858 040

(a)

2016
84 944
915 060
383 275
23 622
1 406 901

COMPANY
2017
(2 047)
369 512
315 106
18 136
700 707

2016
(1 669)
915 060
367 359
1 293
1 282 043

a) In 2016, the Board of the Group/Company approved the project of a future postman. In 2016, the Group/Company accounted a provision in the
amount of EUR 915 060 to pay the obligations of the project over the year 2017. The amount of the provision was calculated in accordance with the plan
on the implementation of the project of a future postman which was communicated to all interested parties in 2016. In twelve months of 2017 EUR 259
047 of the provision were used. The restructuring provision was reduced by EUR 286,501 due to changed assumptions of future obligations.

28 Financial risk management
Credit risk
The Group/Company's top management considers that its credit risk exposure is reflected in the amount of trade and other receivables, cash and shortterm investment, net of allowance for doubtful accounts recognised at the date of the statement of financial position. The Group/Company has no
significant credit risk concentration. Credit risk is managed through regular monitoring procedures (supervision of individual creditors, especially
monitoring and analysis of the largest customers in order to anticipate potential future solvency problems, etc.) and the use of credit conditions. Monthly
assessment of individual users and groups are performed in accordance with the Group/Company's methods in order to take decision due on accounting
of receivables allowance.
Interest rate risk
The Group/Company’s revenue and cash flows from operating activities are essentially independent from changes in market interest rates. The
Group/Company has no significant interest-earning assets.
Most of the financial borrowings of the Group/Company are composed of the loan and financial leasing liabilities with variable interest rates related to
EURIBOR which pose interest rate risk. On 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group/Company hadn't concluded any interest swap agreements and there
were no financial instruments designated to manage the Group/Company's exposure to fluctuation of interest rates.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates with all other variables held constant of the
Group/Company's profit before tax (through the impact on interest rate). There is no impact on the Group/Company's equity other than current year
profit impact.

Increase/
decrease in
percentage
points

GROUP

COMPANY

Impact on
profit before
tax

Impact on
profit before
tax

2016
Euros

+0,5

(53 340)

(52 429)

Euros

-0,02

2 138

2 097

Euros

+0,5

( 54 697)

( 54 697)

Euros

-0,02

2 188

2 188

2017
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28 Financial risk management (continued)
Exchange rate risk
The main exchange rate risk encountered by the Group/Company occurs due to the fact that the Group/Company performs its postal activity
internationally. Monetary unit which is provided for in the Universal Postal Convention and which is mostly used for the estimation of rendered and
received international postal services is a Special Drawing Rights (XDR). Majority of settlements with international posts done by the Group/Company are
carried out in euro. The Group/Company pursues the policy to match cash flows from highly probable future sales with purchases in each foreign
currency. There were no financial instruments designated to manage the Group/Company's exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies were as follows:

As at 31 December 2017
GROUP

Assets

Liabilities

27 356 177 39 665 103
18 438 780
33 169 937
547
8 916 850
6 370 012
125 154
27 356 177
39 665 103

EUR
USD
Special drawing rights (XDR)
CHF

As at 31 December 2017
COMPANY

Assets

Liabilities

29 209 609
38 549 652
20 292 214
32 054 486
547
8 916 850
6 370 012
125 154
29 209 611
38 549 652

EUR
USD
Special drawing rights (XDR)
CHF

As at 31 December 2016
Assets
17 381 346
628
9 528 062
26 910 036

Liabilities
30 384 032
9 292 059
420
39 676 511

As at 31 December 2016
Assets
18 814 697
628
9 528 062
28 343 387

Liabilities
29 705 839
9 292 059
420
38 998 318

The table below illustrates sensitivity of the Group/Company’s profit before tax to changes in exchange rate considering that all other variables constants
(taking into account the changes in fair value of cash assets and liabilities).
GROUP
COMPANY
Increase/decre
Impact on
Increase/decre Impact on
ase in exchange profit before
ase in
profit before
rate
tax
exchange rate
tax
2016
XDR
USD
CHF

+ 10%
+ 10%
+ 10%

(23 600)
( 63)
42

+ 10%
+ 10%
+ 10%

(23 600)
( 63)
42

XDR
USD
CHF

- 10%
- 10%
- 10%

23 600
63
( 42)

- 10%
- 10%
- 10%

23 600
63
( 42)

2017
XDR
USD
CHF

+ 10%
+ 10%
+ 10%

(254 684)
( 55)
12 515

+ 10%
+ 10%
+ 10%

(254 684)
( 55)
12 515

XDR
USD
CHF

- 10%
- 10%
- 10%

254 684
55
(12 515)

- 10%
- 10%
- 10%

254 684
55
(12 515)

Liquidity risk
The Group/Company's policy is to maintain sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its commitments at a given date in accordance with its strategic plans. The Group/Company’s liquidity (total current
assets/total current liabilities) and quick ratios (total current assets – inventories)/total current liabilities) as of 31 December 2017 were 0.80 and 0.73
respectively (0.79 and 0.72 - as of 31 December 2016).
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28 Financial risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group/Company's current liabilities exceeded current assets by EUR 8 300 000. It is planned that in 2018 EBITDA of the
Group (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization) will amount to EUR 5 473 000. It is expected that CAPEX (capital expenditure) of
the Group will amount to about to EUR 5 988 000. As of 31 October 2018 the Danske Bank loan term expires (as at 31 December 2017, the financial debt
to Danske Bank amounts to EUR 5.16 million). In 2018 the Group/Company contacted the banks and received their intention to participate in the tender
for granting the loan. In assessing all ongoing and planned actions and the fact that the Group/Company is the only one in the country providing universal
postal services on a state-owned basis, the Group/Company's management does not see future risks of the Group/Company's business continuity.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 based on a contractual
undiscounted payments.
On request

From 1 to 3
months

GROUP
Interest bearing loans and borrowings

From 1 to 5
years

in 5 years
In total

5 423 346

55 846

136 216

5 612 603

-

11 228 011

-

12 389 294

11 354 154

-

-

23 743 448

5 423 346

12 445 140

11 490 370

5 612 603

-

34 971 459

Trade and other payables
Balance as of 31 December 2016

From 3 to 12
months

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Balance as of 31 December 2017

-

49 077

5 300 704

6 211 753

-

11 561 534

-

12 235 283
12 284 360

11 566 872
16 867 576

6 211 753

-

23 802 155

On request

From 1 to 3
months

COMPANY

From 3 to 12
months

From 1 to 5
years

35 363 689

in 5 years
In total

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

5 423 346

44 580

136 216

5 612 603

-

11 216 745

Trade and other payables
Balance as of 31 December 2016

5 423 346

11 859 624
11 904 204

11 354 154
11 490 370

5 612 603

-

23 213 778
34 430 523

-

49 077

5 300 704

6 211 753

-

11 561 534

-

11 356 486
11 405 563

11 566 872
16 867 576

6 211 753

-

22 923 358
34 484 892

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Balance as of 31 December 2017

Fair value of the financial instruments
The Group/Company's principal financial instruments not carried at fair value are trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, non-current and
current borrowings.
The carrying amount of the Group/Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities as of 31 December 2017 and 2016 approximates to their fair value.
Fair value of loans, financial liabilities and other financial assets have been calculated using market interest rates.
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:
(a) the carrying amount of current trade and other accounts receivable, current trade and other accounts payable and short-term borrowings approximates to their fair
value due to their relatively short maturity (described in Note 2.12 is categorised in the 3rd level of the fair value hierarchy).
(b) The fair value of non-current debt is based on the current rates available for debt with the same maturity profile. The fair value of non-current borrowings with
variable interest rates approximates to their carrying amounts (described in Note 2.12 is categorised in the 3rd level of the fair value hierarchy).
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29 Capital management
The main objective of the Group/Company's capital management is to ensure that the Group meets the external capital requirements and that the Group
maintains capital ratios in order to strengthen its operations and maximize the value of shareholders ("capital" in accordance with IAS 1 is consistent with
equity in the financial statements).
The Group manages the capital structure and adjusts it, taking into account changes in the economic conditions and the nature of the operational risk. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may repay the capital to the shareholder or issue new shares. There were no significant
changes in relation to the objectives, principles or processes of capital management in the financial year ending on 31 December 2017 and 2016. Holders
of shares owned by the state must ensure that the distributable profit for the payment of dividends for the financial year of Groups/Companies in which
the state owns shares representing more than half of all votes, is not less than 80%.

The Group assesses capital using the ratio of liabilities to equity ratio. The capital consists of ordinary shares, reserves, retained earnings (losses).
31 December
GROUP
2017
Long-term liabilities (including deferred taxes and
grants)
Short-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Liabilities and equity ratio

COMPANY
2017

2016

2016

6 278 383

5 416 044

6 276 067

5 413 728

42 509 826
48 788 209
23 270 873
2,10

44 101 420
49 517 464
21 697 593
2,28

41 383 021
47 659 088
24 988 928
1,91

43 400 281
48 814 008
23 094 799
2,11

The Group/Company's parent company has an electronic money institution license and therefore has to comply with the requirements of the electronic
money institution's equity. The rules of amount, calculation and application of the Company's equity as an electronic money institution are established by
the Supervisory Authority (Bank of Lithuania).
The minimum equity of an electronic money institution include:
- authorized capital (reduced by the value of purchased own shares) without the value of cumulative dividend privileged shares;
- reserve capital;
- capital reserve (emission margin);
- retained earnings or losses;
- required reserve or reserve capital;
- other reserves.
The minimum equity provided for in the Law on Electronic Money and Electronic Money Institutions of the Republic of Lithuania, in accordance with the
services of an electronic money institution, shall be at least EUR 350 000 in the public limited company Lietuvos paštas.

The equity of an electronic money institution must not be lower than the higher of the following amounts:
- minimum equity;
- the calculation of the equity requirement of one of the methods (methods A, B, C, D adopted by the Supervisory Authority).
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29 Capital management (continued)
Minimum equity requirements:
Requirement of minimal equity (in thousands of EUR)

350

Minimal amount of equity (in thousands of EUR)

24 987

Calculation of equity requirement (Method B):
Monthly average of payment service turnover (MAPST) (in thousands of EUR)

65 594

Recalculated amount of MAPST (in thousands of EUR):

881

4% of MAPST share up to 5 million EUR (in thousands of EUR)

200

2.5% of MAPST share from 5 million EUR up to 10 million EUR (in thousands of EUR)

125

1% of MAPST share from 10 million EUR up to 100 million EUR (in thousands of EUR)

556

0.5% of MAPST share from 100 million EUR up to 250 million EUR (in thousands of EUR)

-

0.25% of MAPST share over 250 million EUR (in thousands of EUR)

-

Requirement of equity (higher than the minimum equity requirement and calculated equity
requirement) (in thousands of EUR)

881

Calculation of equity requirement (Method D):
Average of unpaid electronic money

216

Equity demand calculated using method D (2% of unpaid electronic money average)

4

The demand for equity calculated using D + B methods

885

DEMAND FOR EQUITY

885

Calculation of the Company's equity as an electronic money institution (Level I):
Authorized capital without privileged shares (in thousands of EUR)

32 792

Reserve capital (in thousands of EUR)
Capital reserve (emission margin) without the amount related to the issue of privileged shares (in
thousands of EUR)
The share of retained earnings for the previous year that is not expected to be paid out in dividends or
the loss of the previous year (in thousands of EUR)
Profit for the current year and/or the retained earnings of the previous year for which the general
meeting of shareholders has not yet made a decision (in thousands of EUR)

(10 558)
1 894

Funds to cover the joint risk of an electronic money institution

-

Privileged shares without cumulative dividend and non-equity securities (in thousands of EUR)
Required reserve or reserve capital (in thousands of EUR)

861

Purchased own shares (nominal value) (in thousands of EUR) (-)

-

Intangible assets (net worth) (in thousands of EUR) (-)

3 036

Loss for the current year (in thousands of EUR)(-)

-

Calculated level I equity of an electronic money institution (in thousands of EUR)

21 953

Calculation of equity of a Company as an electronic money institution (Level II):
Other general purpose reserves

-

Revaluation reserves of non-current assets

-

Financial assets revaluation reserves

-

Special non-allocated reserve

-

Non-property securities

-

Subordinated loans

-

Calculated level II equity of an electronic money institution (in thousands of EUR)

-

CALCULATED EQUITY OF AN ELECTRONIC MONEY INSTITUTION

21 953

Excess of equity (in thousands of EUR)

21 068

The Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Enterprises set the requirement for a company to have equity capital worth no less than 50% of its share capital.
On 31 December 2017 and 2016, Baltic Post, UAB failed to meet this requirement.
If a company's equity becomes smaller than 1/2 of the share capital specified in the Articles of Association, the Board shall no later than within 3 months
from the date on which it discovered the situation convene general meeting of shareholders which shall consider the issues on the remedy of the
situation in one of the following ways: reduce the share capital, pay the accumulated loss by shareholders' contributions or close the company. The
Company is considering the possible ways to solve the situation.

70

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY LIETUVOS PAŠTAS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR WHICH ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER
(All amounts are in EUR unless otherwise stated)

29 Capital management (continued)
If the general meeting of shareholders fail to adopt a decision intended to remedy the situation in the company or such situation is not resolved in 6
months from the date on which the Board discovered or had to know about the situation, the Board of the company shall no later than within 2 months
from the date of general meeting of shareholders address the court with regard to the reduction of the company's share capital by the amount by which
the equity became smaller than the share capital.
30 Commitments and contingencies
The Group has issued guarantees and warranted to the banks the distribution of pensions and other pay outs. The total amount of guarantees (pensions
and benefits) issued and valid as at 31 December 2017 as well as other performance securities amounted to EUR 2 199 042 (compared to EUR 2 218 789
in 2016).
In 2016, the Competition Authority of the Republic of Lithuania opened an investigation on the compliance of the actions of public limited liability
company Lietuvos Paštas with the requirements of Article 7 of the Law on Competition of the Republic of Lithuania. In view of the management of the
parent Company, it is too early to assess the outcomes of this investigation and their impact on the Group's financial statements since no results of the
investigation have been obtained. Should the allegations of the Competition Council be proved, the Company could be imposed a penalty in the amount
of 10% on the total annual income of the previous fiscal year.
In June-July 2017, the Inspection Commission of the Bank of Lithuania carried out a planned on-site inspection of the Company. During the on-site
inspection, it was monitored how the Company complies with the requirements for the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing and
managed information technology risks. In September 2017, the Inspection Commission of the Bank of Lithuania submitted to the Company the final
report of the inspection carried out to the Company. On 21 November 2017 the Bank of Lithuania has decided to allocate the most lenient legal measure
to the Company - a warning. By this decision, the Company was obliged:
1) to specify the action plan for the elimination of deficiencies which were provided to the Bank of Lithuania by 21 November 2017 before the date of the
decision by the Company;
2) to implement the action plan for the eliminating of deficiencies by 31 March 2018;
3) to submit to the Bank of Lithuania data on the implementation of the action plan for the elimination of deficiencies within 10 days after 31 March 2018.
The Company notes that all measures related to the activities provided for in the action plan for eliminating the deficiencies of Lietuvos paštas have been
prepared, i.e. technical functionalities are created, tested, their implementation in the production environment is being carried out. The Company is
convinced that these actions will be properly implemented by 10 April 2018. The Company also prepares data confirming the implementation of all the
works specified in the action plan for the elimination of deficiencies of Lietuvos paštas, which must be submitted to the Bank of Lithuania by 16 April, i.e.
within 10 business days from March 31 - as specified in the resolution of the Bank of Lithuania.
31 Related party transactions
Remuneration for the Company's
In 2017, total remuneration of the Group's management (9 managers) amounted to EUR 395 000 (EUR 371 000 in 2016 to 9 managers). The management
of the Group/Company did not receive any significant loans, guarantees, no other payment or property transfers were made.
Transactions with other related parties
The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. The related parties of the Group are state enterprises whose owners rights and obligations are implemented by the
Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania (official list is available on website www.transp.lt).
The Group does not consider companies controlled by the Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania as one client because
there is no high economic integration among such companies.
Transactions with related parties comprise regular sales and purchases of goods and services related to the Company's activity.
As at 31 December 2017, the Parent Company has granted a loan of EUR 9 380 000 to a subsidiary UAB Baltic Post and a loan of EUR 1 951 072 to UAB LP
mokėjimų sprendimai. The annual interest rate on outstanding loans is fixed at 3.5%. There are no delays repayments of loans.
Transactions of the Parent Company with related parties in 2017 and 2016 and corresponding balances of amounts receivable/payable as of 2017 and 31
December 2016:
Purchases of
goods and
services
Lietuvos pašto finansinės paslaugos, UAB

Baltic post, UAB

LP mokėjimų sprendimai, UAB

2016

Amount due
Sales of goods Amount due to
from related
and services related parties
parties
-

652

-

-

2017

-

-

-

-

2016

475 044

825 344

151 828

8 750 065

2017

355 100

985 665

196 819

9 540 119

2016

-

61 604

-

2 013 117

2017

-

90 894

-

1 990 255
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32 Subsequent events

As at 19 January 2018, the Chief Executive Officer Asta Sungailienė was elected by the decision of the Board of the public limited company Lietuvos
paštas. The Chief Executive Officer started her duties in the Company from 23 February 2018. From 26 March 2018, Andrius Bendikas started to work as a
Director of Finance and Administration.
Public limited company Lietuvos Paštas has not prepared the profit distribution project for the date of approval these financial statements' by the
management.

72

